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Inﬁnite today is a publicly-listed entity headquartered in
Bangalore, India, with presence across three continents, a
diverse and talented employee base, and over +150 premier
clients. We believe in reimagining more than reengineering:
delivering technology platforms at the speed of business, we
provide solutions based on our deep domain experience,
enabling our customers to reach their business goals. Our
solutions build on proprietary industrial frameworks
signiﬁcantly reduce work effort and cost while providing
faster go-to-market speeds and nimble responses to a
dynamic market.

Award & Recognitions
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At Inﬁnite, we believe that our success is closely linked to that
of our customers. We have strong relationships with some of
the global leaders across Telecom, Healthcare, Energy &
Utilities and Media verticals. Our clients are some of the
world's most valuable corporations, and Inﬁnite's association
helps them harness the power of IT to sharpen their
competitive edge. Our engagements are wide-ranging, from
entering into IP-based partnerships to pure-play IT services,
and our strengths lie in being close to the customer,
investing in the relationships, with the aim of aligning closely
with the customer's business objectives.
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Inﬁnite's Technology Solutions'
revenue has grown from

710 Cr. to 1,883

Cr.

Inﬁnite exhibited their latest

DIGITAL HEALTH SOLUTION

ZYTER,

is a secure, intelligent, collaboration
platform used across industries like
healthcare, banking, media, telecom etc..
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Our cutting-edge Technology Solutions (TS) are designed
to help our clients exceed their business goals in a
dynamic marketplace. TS focuses on innovation,
advanced technological competencies, and providing
proprietary solutions across Inﬁnite's chosen verticals.
This includes IP based solutions, Application
Development & Management Services, Infrastructure
Management Services and cloud based services for
Fortune 500 & 1000 clients.
Our success lies in how our solutions have been shaped: by
our deep domain knowledge of emerging business trends
only to be enhanced by our expertise in next generation
technologies across Cloud, Analytics, Mobility and Internet
of Things (IoT). Our work is backed by our superior delivery
experience, customized strategy and agile execution, and a
key focus on providing true business value for our clients.
Because of our seamless integration, we are able to
provide accelerated go-to-market delivery, enabling our
clients to maximize their returns and achieve success and
supporting the general theme of consolidations that seems
to be happening across all verticals.
A key highlight this year has been the success of the
award-winning Zyter® – the ultimate connected platform –
which Inﬁnite launched at industry events last year. This
proprietary platform features seamless 256 encryptionenabled messaging, information aggregation for a wide
range of systems, as well context aware communication &
intelligence. This customizable platform drives signiﬁcant
beneﬁts across industries and is currently already
deployed in the education, government and healthcare
sectors; boasting a user base on >1M within its ﬁrst year.
Zyter® is helping organization connect intelligently for smart
outcomes. While the product is getting great reception in all
of Inﬁnite's verticals, it has gathered the most steam in the
Healthcare Provider space. Zyter® has been successfully
deployed at multiple provider organizations. Feedback
from customer indicates that this is “game-changing”
solution for the industry. With only partial adoption within
the provider network, Zyter® can easily reduce costs with
the organization by millions of dollars. The ROI time line on
Zyter(R) is <3 months.

Zyter®, paired with other strong industry offerings – including
data migration and IT infrastructure modernization–has a
signiﬁcant pipeline of strong Healthcare prospects.
Our telecom/media vertical capabilities continue to grow,
leveraging our deep understanding of the market changes
facing our clients. With our capabilities, we position them for
market leadership against the backdrop of 5G expansion,
network infrastructure upgrades, and wireline and wireless
integration.
Supporting the industry trend to consolidate there has
been some key initiatives around the uniﬁcation of
Access, Metro, Edge, and Core infrastructure supported
by a directional OSS. Inﬁnite's strong relationship in the
telecom ﬁeld and deep domain knowledge resulted in a
signiﬁcant deal with one of the largest telecom provider to
design a simpliﬁed network architecture, deliver uniﬁed
domains and create OSS/SDN foundations to support
more dynamic and application-based services which
enable network automation with end-to-end network
management capabilities.
Inﬁnite also had several wins supporting clients in their
effort to integrate end-to-end business processes for
business with high volume of incident using the Remedy
Platform for service management. The client beneﬁted by
realizing cost saving due to the reduced time its vendors
were spending updating tickets email/phone. Most of the
vendors were up and running just within few days/few
weeks without much custom development work.
The TS team also saw growth in its professional services
offering due to vendor consolidation this time. In addition to
a strong pipeline leading into next year, Inﬁnite successfully
secured a large, much sought after RFP at a Fortune 20
customer–aimed at consolidating number of vendors to
the organization.

Inﬁnite has also had major traction in the marketplace via
its offerings of EMR migration and cloud migration of
Health Care applications. The current trend of provider
consolidation requires organization to unify their
applications, hosting and processes, creating a signiﬁcant
demand of Inﬁnite offerings.
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251 Cr.
Revenues clocked in
Mobility Solutions

44 Clients
during the course of the year
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Inﬁnite Convergence the Mobility Solutions Division of
Inﬁnite, is widely recognized as a leader in innovative
messaging and mobility solutions and next-generation
wireless communication technologies for mobile operators
and enterprises around the world. This year Inﬁnite's Mobility
Solutions division clocked in Revenues of ₹ 251 Cr.
Formed in 2010 from an alliance between Inﬁnite
Computer Solutions and Motorola (now Nokia), Inﬁnite
Convergence has earned a reputation for delivering
unparalleled performance and reliability in messaging
and mobility. Although we are headquartered in Chicago,
we are a truly global company, maintaining a business
presence in the USA, Germany, India and Singapore.
Inﬁnite Convergence provides next-generation messaging
and mobility solutions to carriers and enterprises around
the world. Our platform provides a comprehensive
messaging products and services portfolio, including an
Enterprise Messaging Services Suite (EMS), secure
messaging through NetSfere, Short Message Service
(SMS), Multimedia Message Service (MMS), SMS Gateway,
Public Safety Messaging, Rich Communication Suite
(RCS) and Personal Messaging Cloud (PMC) solutions. With
a proven track record in legacy messaging platforms for
carriers such as ATCA (Advanced Telecommunications
Computing Architecture), we have also pioneered the next
generation Cloud Application Platform (CAP) and
Cloud-hosted (Public and Private) messaging solutions for
end-to-end messaging needs our customers.

The ﬂagship product NetSfere provides enterprises with a
private, highly secure, reliable, centrally managed and
controlled, cloud-based mobile messaging service backed
by 2,000 years of combined messaging experience
delivering trillions of messages globally.
Inﬁnite can help clients into the major emerging trends in
Enterprise Mobility Management by delivering intuitive,
adaptive, dependable and cost-effective solutions that
foster streamlining of operations and superior customer
service through informed, real-time decision making.
Apart from developing compelling native, hybrid and web
mobile applications across leading operating systems
such as iOS, Android and Windows, we connect the same
to existing enterprise systems; we provision robust data
security and management.

From the client's addition perspective this has been a very
good year especially from the point of view of new clients for
our products, NetSfere and EMS. It has been a fairly good
year in terms of acquiring new clients and we are hoping that
we have done the hard work and in this year we would start
seeing some increased revenue from these clients. We have
added 44 clients during the course of the year and some of
them are multi-million, multi-year dollar deals with both new
and existing clients. What is very encouraging for us is that we
have started to see major traction in product sales especially
NetSfere and EMS. We have started to see signiﬁcant traction
and the addition of clients, which is a big positive. In fact, in
the month of March we added 10 new enterprise customers
for EMS and NetSfere, which is quite signiﬁcant. Overall from
all these clients some are revenue based and some are
license-based clients, so they start small and then gradually
start scaling up.
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232 Cr.
Revenues in FY17
Product Engineering Services

Acquired New Giant

TELECOM Client
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Inﬁnite has been providing hardware and software
development and full life-cycle support for products and
systems in the telecommunications arena, a ﬁeld that
demands ﬂawless execution and attention to detail. We
provide product engineering ser vices to major
telecommunications gear makers, service providers,
chipset vendors, operational support systems vendors in
the Wire line, Wireless, and Intelligent Network areas.
The Product Engineering Services (PES) was added to our
service offering after the acquisition of Comnet
International in 2007. This vertical provides leading edge
solutions to our customers in Telecom and Industrial Control
& Automation segments with hardware and software
development and full life-cycle support for products,
platforms and systems. In FY17 our revenues from PES
division stood at ₹ 232 Cr. contributing to around 10% of
our overall revenues.

Inﬁnite's prowess in Product Engineering for broadband
networking enables Telecom OEM manufacturers to
manage the challenges of bringing down time to market in
a business environment that requires constant innovation
and shorter product cycles. The services also include
performance and scalability planning, development cost
appreciation.
Inﬁnite's expertise in technology helped the client shorten
their development lifecycle and go to market faster.
Inﬁnite's association proved to be a signiﬁcant contributor
in meeting the client's planned and adhoc business
challenges. The consistency with which Inﬁnite delivered
technology solutions to overcome PDLC challenges
resulted in Inﬁnite becoming a key strategic partner to the
client, owning the releases to the product and co-owning
the PDLC.

Inﬁnite's PES business leverages on our IP-Based RevenueShare Model to help global customers rationalize product
costs and move us from a technology vendor to a
technology partner. The company focuses on providing IP
Led Solutions to Telecom OEMs/ISV, Telecom Service
Providers, Content Distribution Enterprises and Technology
Companies through the Revenue Share Model. The
Company provides product engineering services to major
telecommunications gear makers, service providers,
chipset vendors, operational support systems vendors in
the Wire line, Wireless and Intelligent Network areas.
Inﬁnite's Industrial Control & Automation solutions enable
convergence of real time data, SCADA, PLC, DCS,
Manufacturing Execution Systems and HMIs.
With a distinct advantage of deep expertise in key
components viz. Sensors & Actuators, Connectivity &
Processes which enable Internet of Things (IoT), we are
getting our customers prepared for the future by
designing and developing compelling IoT solutions and
deploying them in cloud.
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BOARDS' REPORT
To the Members,
Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting their 18th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together
with the audited financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2017.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) from April 01, 2016 and accordingly, the financial results have been
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 along with previous year's figures is given hereunder:

Consolidated Financials of the Company
₹ in Million

Particulars
Total Sales and Income
Total Expenses
Total Income before Tax & Depreciation
Depreciation
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (PBT)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT)
Total Comprehensive Income

Year ended March 31, 2017
23,782.62
21,753.84
2,028.78
377.25
1,651.53
1,208.84
1,223.05

Year ended March 31, 2016
21,241.00
19,179.82
2,061.18
477.47
1,583.71
1,210.34
1,219.70

Year ended March 31, 2017
3,928.12
2,603.65
1,324.47
144.11
1,180.36
918.11
926.38

Year ended March 31, 2016
4,425.68
3,126.97
1,298.71
157.62
1,141.09
950.03
947.96

Standalone Financials of the Company
Particulars
Total Sales and Income
Total Expenses
Total Income before Tax & Depreciation
Depreciation
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (PBT)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT)
Total Comprehensive Income

₹ in Million

OVERVIEW OF COMPANY'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Consolidated Accounts
Consolidated revenue for the fiscal year 2017 was ₹ 23,782.62 Million which was increased by 11.97% in compared to the previous year.
Net Profit before tax was ₹ 1,651.53 Million (previous year ₹ 1,583.71 Million) and Net Profit after tax was ₹ 1,208.84 Million, which was
decreased by 0.12% over the previous year.
The Consolidated financial statements of your Company for the financial year 2016-17, are prepared in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Accounting Standards and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as prescribed. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
Audited Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, as approved by their respective Board of Directors.

Standalone Accounts
Standalone revenue for the fiscal year 2016-17 was ₹ 3,928.12 Million (previous year ₹ 4,425.68 Million). Profit before tax was ₹ 1,180.36
Million, which has increased by 3.44% compared to the previous year and Net Profit after tax was ₹ 918.11 Million.

a. Subsidiaries
A separate statement containing the salient features of Financial Statements of all subsidiaries of your Company forms part of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with the section 129 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and related information are available for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of your Company during the business hours except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upto the date of Annual
General Meeting (AGM) as required under section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. Any member desirous of obtaining a copy of the said
Financial Statements may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of your Company. The Financial Statements including
the Consolidated Financial Statements and all other documents required to be attached to this report have been uploaded on the
website of your Company (www.infinite.com).
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The financial performance of each of the subsidiaries in the Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company is set out in the
Annexure - A to this Annual Report (Page No. 17) Additional details of the performance and operations of the subsidiaries along with the
details of the acquisitions and investments made by your Company and its subsidiaries during the Financial Year are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis which also forms part of this Annual Report.

b. Associate & Joint Venture
As on March 31, 2017, the Company doesn't have any associate or joint venture.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management Discussion and Analysis forms an integral part of this Report and gives details of the Company's global business
during the year under review as well as business outlook, along with a discussion on the operations, performance, future outlook of the
Company and its business, internal controls and risk management, which is given as Annexure – B (Page No. 18)

DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO RESERVES
After careful assessment of the funds required by the Company for expansion, your Directors have not recommended any dividend for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2017. Accordingly, during the said year, no amount has been transferred to the Reserves.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The report on Corporate Governance is given as a separate section titled “Report on Corporate Governance” which forms part of this
Annual Report along with the Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the Corporate
Governance requirements as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE
a. Buy-back of Securities
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on October 12, 2016 approved the proposal for Buy-back of upto a total
consideration not exceeding ₹ 150 Crores at a price not exceeding ₹ 270/- per equity share of face value ₹ 10/- each through the
stock exchanges under Tender Offer route. The shareholders of the company approved the aforesaid Buy-back through Postal
Ballot, the result of which were announced by the Company on December 09, 2016.
The Buy-back opened on February 10, 2017 and closed on February 23, 2017 and the settlement was made by Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) on March 06, 2017. The number of equity shares bought back under the scheme was 5,660,000 at a price of ₹ 265/per equity, utilizing a total amount of ₹ 149.99 Crores.
The paid-up equity share capital of the Company after the extinguishment of shares bought back stood at ₹ 330.46 Million
comprising of 33,046,459 equity shares of ₹ 10/- each.
b. Allotment of Shares
Your Company has not allotted any shares during the year under review.
c. Sweat Equity/Bonus Shares
Your Company has not issued any Sweat Equity or Bonus Shares during the year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There has been no material change in the nature of business of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial
year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

Change in the Nature of Business
During the financial year ended March 31, 2017, there has been no material change in the nature of the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
a. Appointment/re-appointment
As per the provisions of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sanjay Govil will retire at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
Board’s Report|12

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

Brief resume and other details relating to Mr. Sanjay Govil, who is to be re-appointed is furnished in the Notice convening the 18th
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
b. Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Upinder Zutshi, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Sanjeev Gulati, Executive Vice President & CFO and Mr. Rajesh Kumar Modi,
Company Secretary of the Company, are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as per the provisions of section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL &
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
In accordance with section 178 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder
and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on November
13, 2014 formulated the Nomination & Remuneration Policy of your Company, which was further amended on February 14, 2017 on
recommendation from Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The salient features and terms of reference are covered in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms integral part of this Report.
The particulars of remuneration of employees/Directors as required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is set out in Annexure – C of this Annual Report. (Page No. 24)

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In compliance with section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:
i.

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed, along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;
iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;
iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
v.

They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD/COMMITTEE & MEETINGS
The details of the composition of the Board and its Committees along with details of the number of meetings and attendance thereon,
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms an integral part of the Annual Report. The Company has accepted all
recommendations of the Audit Committee during the year.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE
Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as
provided under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedule IV of the Act and the Rules issued thereunder as well
as the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS
Your Company conducted the performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Director. The details of which are provided
under Corporate Governance Report which form a part of this Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN
The details required to be provided under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 are set out in the Annexure - D
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report (Page No. 26). As on March 31, 2017, the total outstanding options was NIL.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 is provided as the Annexure – E
of this Annual Report. (Page No. 28)

AUDITORS & AUDITORS' REPORT
a. Statutory Audit
M/s. Amit Ray & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors for a period of 3 Financial Years i.e. 2014-15,
2015-16 and 2016-17 by the shareholders in the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 24, 2014,
subject to ratification of appointment at every Annual General Meeting.
Since the term of M/s. Amit Ray & Co; Chartered Accountants is valid upto the date of 18th AGM of the Company to be held in 2017,
the Board of Director of the Company have recommended for the approval of shareholders at the 18th AGM of the company, the
appointment of M/s. HDSG & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the company, for a period of 5 years w.e.f.
the date of 18th AGM till 23rd AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2022.
M/s. HDSG & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept the office of the
Statutory Auditors, if ratified by the shareholders at every Annual General meeting of the Company and as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further the Auditors’ Report being self-explanatory does not call for any further comments by the Board of Directors. No fraud was
detected by the Auditors during the year under review.
b. Secretarial Auditors & its Report
Your Company had appointed M/s. HBP & Co., Company Secretaries, Bengaluru to conduct Secretarial Audit of your Company for the
year 2016-17, pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure – F to this
Annual Report. (Page No. 35). It does not contain any adverse remarks or qualifications.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES
In terms of section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company have constituted a CSR Committee comprising of
majority of Non–Executive Independent Director. With a view to help growth of the society and the company at large, your company has
adopted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy as a tool for sustainable growth of the society. Pursuant to the provisions of section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, read with various
clarifications issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has undertaken activities as per the CSR Policy and details are
contained in the Annual Report on the CSR activities as provided under Annexure – G. (Page No. 38).

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Board of your Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate financial controls as per the provisions of section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has laid down policies and processes in respect of internal financial controls and ensures
the controls to be adequate and operating efficiently.
These controls cover the policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets of the Company, prevention and detection of its frauds and
errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.
The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operation. The scope and
authority of the Internal Audit function is clearly defined by the Audit Committee of the Board. To maintain its objectivity and
independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates
the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system of the company, its compliance with applicable laws/regulations, accounting
procedures and policies. Based on the report of the Internal Auditors, corrective action are undertaken and thereby strengthen the
controls. Significant audit observations and action plan are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board on quarterly basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on November 13, 2014, approved the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The policy
framed to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimum adverse impact
on the business objectives and enhance the Company's competitive advantages. The Company has identified various risks and also
has mitigation plans for each risk identified.

Board’s Report|14

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year under review, your Company has entered into transactions with the related parties as defined under section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014, which were in the ordinary course of
business and on arms' length basis and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars of such
transactions entered are set out in the Form AOC–2 as provided under Annexure–H of this Annual Report. (Page No. 40)
The policy on materiality of related party transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the website of the Company
(http://www.infinite.com/investors/policies)
Related Party disclosures have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements forming integral part of Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013
The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM
Your Company has established a vigil mechanism and formulated a Whistle Blower Policy as per the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in line with Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.The
Policy provides the framework and processes through which the employees can express their genuine concerns. It also provides
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees against any kind of discrimination, harassment or any unfair practice being
adopted against them.
The Whistle Blower Policy as adopted by the Company can be accessed through the following:
http://www.infinite.com/downloads/policies/WhistleBlowerPolicy.pdf

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
Your Company has a policy on Prohibition/Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and matters connected therewith
or incidental covering thereto all the aspects as contained in “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2003. Your Company is committed to provide and promote safe, healthy and congenial atmosphere irrespective of
gender, caste, creed or social class of the employees. During the year, the Company did not receive any complaints under the said Act.

SIGNIFICANT/ MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
There were no significant/material orders passed by any of the Regulators or Courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status of
the Company and its operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information pertaining to conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under
section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished herein.
Your Company strives to conserve energy on a perpetual basis. Your Company has procured various energy saving devices and systems,
which help in conserving energy. Bulk of the electric fixtures is equipped with electronic ballast which has resulted into a significant
savings in the energy cost. Your Company has reduced excessive illumination levels in all common areas by using switching or
delamping and aggressively controlled lighting with new sensor technologies. Apart from this, your Company has installed LED lighting
in common areas and other places wherever possible. Efforts were made to ensure that there is no cool air leakage from its premises
and have adopted measures to ensure optimum usage of air conditioners throughout its premises. As your Company has not entered
into technical collaboration with any entity, there are no particulars relating to technology absorption.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outflows
i.

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products and services
and export plans.
During the year, a substantial portion of the revenue of the Company was derived from exports. The Company has 19 sales
offices spread over USA, Europe and APAC. These offices are staffed with sales and technical staff for furthering the company's
sales to overseas customers.

ii. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
The information on Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo is included in Note 28 (O) of the Notes to Accounts to the Balance Sheet.
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Annexure B

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
GLOBAL ECONOMY OVERVIEW
The global economy is in the midst of a decade long slow growth environment characterized by an imminent productivity growth crisis. The
looming labor shortage in mature economies and skill deficiencies in emerging markets will add further challenges to global economic prospect.
Global financial markets continue to face elevated levels of uncertainty notwithstanding the resilience to the outcomes of Brexit referendum and
the US election. A negative feedback loop arising from productivity and global trade slowdowns and rising protectionism is adding to the
pessimistic outlook on global recovery even as the uptick in US interest rates poses a significant risk to emerging market economies.
The forces shaping the global outlook—both those operating over the short term and those operating over the long term—point to subdued
growth for 2016 and a gradual recovery thereafter, as well as to downside risks. These forces include new shocks, such as Brexit, U.K.
referendum result in favor of leaving the European Union; ongoing realignments, such as rebalancing in China and the adjustment of
commodity exporters to a protracted decline in terms of trade; and slow-moving trends, such as demographics and the evolution of
productivity growth; as well as non-economic factors, such as geopolitical and political uncertainty. The subdued recovery also plays a role
in explaining the weakness in global trade and persistently low inflation.
Among advanced economies, activity rebounded strongly in the United States after a weak first half of 2016, and the economy is approaching
full employment. Output remains below potential in a number of other advanced economies, notably in the euro area. Preliminary thirdquarter growth figures were somewhat stronger than previously forecast in some economies, such as Spain and the United Kingdom, where
domestic demand held up better than expected in the aftermath of the Brexit vote. The growth rate in China was a bit stronger than expected,
supported by continued policy stimulus.
Goldman Sachs expects global growth for 2017 to be 3.5%. US has led the improvement by growing at 2-3% growth, Fiscal easing is also likely
under the Trump organisation, Europe's growth forecast is 1 and a half percent, it is consistent with the gradual labour market improvement,
Japan's growth rate is in the range of 1%, cause of the weakness in the demographics, and decline in the working age population.
China is expected to grow by 6 and a 1/2 percent, long term concerns remain due to the continued rapid debt growth, which has a
potential for financial weakness. Commodity producers saw a lot of economic pain in 2015-16 but there is some gradual recovery.

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW
India's economy is slowly gaining momentum, with an expected GDP growth of 7.3 and 7.5 per cent in 2016 and 2017, respectively.
Despite some delays in domestic policy reforms and enduring fragilities in the banking system, investment demand is supported by the
monetary easing cycle, rising FDI, and government efforts towards infrastructure investments and public-private partnerships.
Economic activity is beginning to firm after demonetization shocked the economy in the October to December period. The manufacturing
PMI crossed into expansionary territory in January and imports rebounded. The government's bold demonetization program resulted in
massive cash shortages and economic disruptions through the economy at the end of last year and growth is expected to have slowed to
a multi-year low in Q3 FY 2016. Despite the backdrop of more moderate growth, the government stuck to a market friendly budget for FY
2017. The budget pursued growth-supportive policies while targeting a narrower deficit of 3.2% of GDP and was met with a positive
market reaction.
With the government taking steps to improve ease of doing business and relax regulations, foreign direct investment or FDI into the
country surged 60 per cent to $ 4.68 billion in November last year. During the period, India received maximum FDI from Singapore,
Mauritius, the UK, the US, the Netherlands and Japan, an official said.
The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) signaled an unexpected early end to the two-year-old rate cut cycle, citing concerns of resurgent inflation.
The monetary policy committee (MPC), headed by Hon'ble Governor Shri Urjit Patel, decided unanimously to shift the policy stance from
“accommodative” to “neutral” and left the repo rate at 6.25%. The MPC said it was still assessing the transitory effects of demonetization
on inflation, and the output gap. It also cited significant upside risks to inflation, such as rising crude prices and exchange rate volatility.
The agriculture sector recorded very high growth as the favorable monsoon led to high production of kharif crops and mounting supplies
in the markets. The slowdown in the services sector was because of the drag in financial and real estate services. The slowdown in real
estate is also reflected in the deceleration in construction growth. While the impact of de-monetization was not visible in the Q3 data,
the slowdown in economic activity is reflected in data of the past three quarters. With a smart and pragmatic Budget, greater
government-policy focus on rural development and efforts to widen financial inclusion also augur well for the future of consumption.
Link:

https://www.conference-board.org/economic-outlook2017/
https://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/weo/2016/02/pdf/c1.pdf
http://www.focus-economics.com/countries/india
http://www.ibef.org/economy/foreign-direct-investment.aspx
http://www.hindustantimes.com/business-news/no-more-cuts-in-interest-rates-for-now-says-rbi-citing-inflationconcerns/story-EyzsWPkQP2DP79VR9AYV2I.html
https://www.dailyfx.com/forex/technical/home/analysis/usoil/2017/02/24/Oil-Tech-Analysis-Feb-24.html.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
SEGMENTS GENERAL OUTLOOK
TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS - INDUSTRIAL OVERVIEW
The global IT industry surpassed $3.4 trillion in 2016, according to the research consultancy IDC. If growth expectations materialize, the
industry will push past the $3.5 trillion mark in the year ahead.
The U.S. market represents 28 percent of the worldwide total over $1 trillion. The next largest market is the Asia-Pacific region, which
encompasses Japan, China, Australia, India, and surrounding countries. The share of the Asia-Pacific region has increasingly
accounted for a larger share of the global IT pie.
The vast majority of IT spending stems from purchases made by business or enterprises, with a small portion coming from household
spending. With the increasing blurring of work and personal life, especially in the small business space, along with the BYOD
phenomenon, it is difficult to classify certain types of technology purchases as being solely business or solely consumer.
The Key segments of the global IT market consist of majorly 41% of Telecom Services like fixed voice and data and wireless data, 27% of
the IT hardware services including smartphones, tablets , network equipment , printer and peripherals, 19% for the IT services and
13% Software including applications and system Information Software.
Technology has been both a driver and facilitator of these workplace changes. Of late, an ever-increasing array of new collaboration and
communication tools has further changed the equation. Mirroring the BYOD trend, organizations have not always embraced these new
tools at the same rate as their employees' desire to use them.
Over time, businesses have moved to a much more strategic view. The correct application of technology can enhance productivity, provide
insights, or create new revenue opportunities. IT now has to take an approach that considers broad business demands, especially as
various business units are able to drive their own technology initiatives.
Businesses today are starting to recognize the critical role that technology plays in advancing corporate objectives. From identifying new
customers to hiring a skilled workforce to exploring new products now requires technology to move forward at a modern pace.
Companies may have originally viewed transformation as an avenue for growth, but it is becoming a requirement for survival.

PRODUCT ENGINEERING SERVICES - INDUSTRIAL OVERVIEW
The product engineering services market size is expected to grow from $ 676.17 billion in 2016 to $ 1,003.12 billion by 2021, at a
Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 8.2% from 2016 to 2021. The product engineering services offer the benefit of cost
reduction, enhanced customer experience, and reduced Time-To-Market.
The rising adoption of IT solutions is anticipated to aid the market growth over the next four years. It is estimated that by 2020, there would
be approximately 25 billion connected devices across the globe. Advanced sensor technologies can enhance M2M communications and
provide better connectivity to improve IT systems. IT solutions help end-users to enhance the customer experience and reduce costs
through automated sensors, devices, and application services.
The main challenge faced by organizations in the marketplace is developing new products at reduced cost. Increasing cost efficiency is
a planned engineering work that requires a dynamic approach and needs to be effective. Fear of losing control over intellectual property
rights and cultural differences in terms of product philosophy and design are the major restraints of the market.

MOBILITY SERVICES - INDUSTRIAL OVERVIEW
Mobility Services Market is expected to grow from $2.92 billion in 2014 to $11.05 billion by 2019, at a Compound Annual Growth Rate
(CAGR) of 30.5% during the forecast period 2014-2019. The adoption of Managed Mobility Services solutions is expansive among
SMBs, as the implementation of this solution does not demand expansion of IT resources as the solutions is managed comprehensively
by Managed Service Providers (MSPs). Moreover, North America in general and U.S. and Canada in particular are rapidly adopting MMS
solutions as there is a substantial penetration of mobile devices among organizations for continual connectivity among employees for
enabling agile services to its customers.
Almost 80 percent of global consumers have smart phones 93 percent of the consumers in emerging markets and 78 percent in
developed markets look at their phone within an hour or less of waking up. 47 percent of emerging market consumers reported using
their phones to make in-store payments compared to 20 percent of consumers in developed markets, 4G speeds are consistently
higher than Wi-Fi speeds.
Link:

https://www.comptia.org/resources/it-industry-trends-analysis-2017
https://globenewswire.com/news-release/2015/05/05/732229/0/en/Managed-Mobility-Services-Market-2015-GlobalForecast-to-2019.html
http://www.technavio.com/report/global-it-professional-services-global-product-engineering-services-market-2016-2020
http://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/product-engineering-services-market-by-service-product--component-designprocess-engineering-maintenance-repair--operation-organization-size-smes-and-large-enterprise-vertical-and-region---globalforecast-to-2021-300437393.html

19|Board’s Report

TM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The financial performance discussed below is based on the consolidated financial results for the year ended March 31, 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized share capital of the Company is ₹ 500 million consisting of 50 million equity shares of ₹ 10 each. The paid up share
capital stands at ₹ 330.5 million as on March 31, 2017. Reduction in share capital is due to shares bought back during the year.

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Share Premium
Share premium stands at ₹ NIL on March 31, 2017 compared to ₹ 164.2 million in the previous year. The decrease in share premium is
on account of Buy-back of shares during the year.

General Reserve
General Reserve stands at ₹ 322.4 million on March 31, 2017 compared to ₹ 322.4 million in the previous year.

Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital redemption reserve stands at ₹ 110.3 million on March 31, 2017 compared to ₹ 53.7 million in the previous year. The increase
in capital redemption reserve is on account of Buy-back of shares during the year.

Profit & Loss Account
The balance retained in the profit and loss account (Including OCI adjustments) as of March 31, 2017 is ₹ 6,925.4 million compared to
₹ 7,044.7 million as of March 31, 2016.

Forex Translation Reserve
The balance retained in the Forex translation reserve as of March 31, 2017 is ₹ 986.6 million compared to ₹ 1,143.3 million as of
March 31, 2016.

SHAREHOLDER'S FUND
Total shareholders' funds decreased to ₹ 8,674.3 million as of March 31, 2017 from ₹ 9,115.4 million as of the previous year. The
reduction was mainly due to shares bought back during the year. The book value per share increased to ₹ 262.5 as of March 31, 2017
as compared to ₹ 235.6 as of March 31, 2016.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Our loan funds have decreased to ₹ 2.68 million as of March 31, 2017 from ₹ 2.73 million as of previous year.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities as on March 31, 2017 were ₹ 201 million as compared to ₹ 301.9 million as of March 31, 2016.

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current liabilities and provisions were ₹ 9,467.2 million as of March 31, 2017 as compared to ₹ 8,286.1 million as of March 31, 2016.
Our working capital related borrowings has increased to ₹ 1,357.2 million as of March 31, 2017 as compared to ₹ 690.9 million in the
previous year.
Trade Payables have increased to ₹ 2,976.9 million from ₹ 1,822.1 million in the previous year.
Other Current Liabilities have decreased to ₹ 1,250.1 million from ₹ 1,656.6 million in the previous year.
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FIXED ASSETS
The movement in the Fixed Assets is shown in the table below:
Assets
Land
Buildings
Computers
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fixtures
Vehicles
Leasehold Improvements
IT & Networking Equipment
Plant & Machinery
Electrical Installations
Intangible assets
Software
Good will
Franchisee fee
TOTAL

₹ in Millions

Gross Block as on March 31, 2017
655.6
452.8
661.0
179.0
206.7
65.5
151.1
1,002.1
40.3
59.9

Gross Block as on March 2016
581.7
274.8
641.3
161.9
213.4
58.1
179.6
1,019.4
40.3
70.5

2,111.1
31.2
10.0
5,626.3

2,105.6
31.9
10.0
5,388.5

The net block of fixed assets, capital work in progress decreased to ₹ 2,543 million from ₹ 2,620.6 million as on March 31, 2016.

GOODWILL
Opening goodwill as shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet was ₹ 683.5 million in respect of acquisition of 100% stock of India
Comnet International Pvt Ltd by Infinite Computer Solutions Inc. which has decreased to ₹ 666.4 million as on March 31, 2017, decrease
of ₹ 17.1 million over the previous year's balance is due to exchange difference.

INVESTMENTS
The Company has made several strategic investments in a number of wholly owned 100 % subsidiaries, the details of which are as per
the table below.
Percentage of Ownership Interest as at
March 31, 2017
March 31, 2016
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Name of the
Subsidiary Company
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Pte. Ltd.
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc.
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd.
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Limited

Country of
Incorporation
Singapore
USA
Malaysia
China
UK

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Canada Inc.

Canada

Subsidiary of
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc.

Inﬁnite Carehub LLC

USA

Subsidiary of
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc.

-

Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions Inc.

USA

India Comnet International Private Limited

India

100%
100%

100%
100%

Subsidiary of
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc.

Subsidiary of
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc.

Inﬁnite Infocomplex Private Limited
Inﬁnite Infoworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infopark Limited
Inﬁnite Techhub Limited
Inﬁnite Techworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infocity Limited
Inﬁnite Techcity Limited
Inﬁnite Techsoft Limited
Inﬁnite Skytech Limited
Inﬁnite Thinksoft Limited
Inﬁnite Techmind Limited
Inﬁnite Techdata Limited
Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited

India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India
India

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Deferred tax asset as on March 31, 2017 were ₹ 243.8 million as compared to ₹ 236.6 million as of March 31, 2016.

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables increased to ₹ 6,385.3 million after provision for doubtful debts amounting to ₹ 7.4 million as of March 31, 2017
from ₹ 5,250 million after provision for doubtful debts amounting to ₹ 6.1 million as of March 31, 2016.
Included in the debtors are those pertaining to pass-through revenue – ₹ 745.3 million and ₹ 639.2 million for the year ended March 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
The Days Sales Outstanding (DSO) as appears in financials is 127 days for the year ended March 31, 2017 as compared to 125 days for
the previous year.
The DSO of the core business (excluding pass through) has increased to 114 days in FY17 from 113 in FY16.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents at the end of March 31, 2017 are ₹ 2,812.8 million as compared to ₹ 3,115 million as on March 31, 2016. The
bank balances in India include both rupee accounts and foreign currency accounts. The bank balances in overseas current accounts are of
the Company's overseas subsidiaries, its branches and an overseas collection account.

Short Term Loans and Advances
Loans and advances as on March 31, 2017 were ₹ 64.9 million as compared to ₹ 61.6 million as on March 31, 2016.

Other Current Assets
Other Current Assets increased to ₹ 5,188.2 million as of March 31, 2017 from ₹ 5,027.4 million on March 31, 2016.

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE
The financial year 2017 was a good year for Infinite. The year saw Infinite grow its top line by 12.2% in INR terms to ₹ 23,662.8 million
and 9.6% in USD terms to $ 352.7 million. We have classified our revenues into four geographic segments comprising the Americas,
Europe, Asia Pacific and Domestic (India). The geographic breakdown of revenues contained in the following table, is based on the
location of the specific client entity for which the project has been executed, irrespective of the location where the invoice is raised or
whether the work is performed onsite or from our offshore delivery centres in India.
in Millions

Geographical location

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Domestic

1,157.9

1,359.1

Americas
Europe

21,090.2

18,585.8

133.0

23.5

1,281.7

1,114.6

APAC

Our revenues are generated from Time and Material, Fixed Price and Revenue share projects. On time-and-material contracts revenues
are recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized as per the proportionate
completion method. Revenue from revenue share contracts is recognized as and when it accrues.
The segmentation of software services by project type is as follows:
Project Type

FY 2017

FY 2016

Fixed Price / SOW

20.0%

17.6%

Revenue Share

11.7%

15.4%

Time and Material

68.3%

67.0%
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Our revenues are also segmented into onsite and offshore revenues. Onsite revenues are those where the services are provided at our
clients locations while offshore revenues are those where the services are provided from our software development centers located in
India. This segmentation is as follows:
Revenue Mix

FY 2017

FY 2016

Onsite

84.6 %

79.3 %

Offshore / Domestic

15.4 %

20.7 %

The services performed onsite typically generate higher revenues per-capita, but at a lower gross margin in percentage as compared to
services performed at our own facilities. Therefore, any increase in onsite effort impacts our margins. The growth in revenue is due to an
all-round growth in various segments of the business mix and is mainly due to growth in business volumes.

OTHER INCOME
Other income for the year ended March 31, 2017 was ₹ 119.8 million, as compared to the previous year's income of ₹ 158 million. decrease
of ₹ 38.2 million is mainly due to exchange loss in the current year of ₹ 40.7 million reduced by increase in interest income of ₹ 29.72 million.

EXPENSES
The overall expenditure of the company increased by 12.58% over the last year to ₹ 22,131.1 million. The expenses mainly consist of
manpower cost, other expenses, financial cost and depreciation.

MANPOWER RELATED EXPENSES
Manpower related expenses include salaries, wages and bonus, contribution to provident fund and other funds, staff welfare costs and
expenses towards contractual services. These expenses increased by 15.33% in the fiscal year 2017 over fiscal year 2016.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
The administration and other expenses have decreased by 10.1% in fiscal 2017.
The Company incurred interest expense of ₹ 10.6 million in fiscal 2017 on borrowings as compared to ₹ 12 million in fiscal 2016.

EBITDA MARGINS
This period saw our EBITDA improve by 3% in INR terms to ₹ 1,973.9 million and marginal increase of 0.6% in USD terms to $ 29.4
million. EBITDA margins as a percentage of revenue were 8.3% in fiscal 2017 as compared to 9.1% in fiscal 2016.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit before tax, prior period and extraordinary items increased by 4.3% to ₹ 1,651.5 million in fiscal 2017 from ₹ 1,583.7 million in
fiscal 2016. Profit before tax as a percentage of revenue was 6.98% in fiscal 2017 as compared to 7.51% in fiscal 2016.

TAXES
The provision of current tax and deferred tax for the year ended March 31, 2017 was ₹ 443.7 million as compared to ₹ 373.4 million in
the previous year. The effective tax rate in these years was 26.87 % and 23.58 % respectively.

NET PROFIT
The Profit after Tax (PAT), for the year ended March 31, 2017 was up by 0.3% in INR terms to ₹ 1,223.1 million and decline of 2% in
USD terms to USD 18.22 million. Profit after tax as a percentage of revenue was 5.17% in fiscal 2017 and 5.78% fiscal 2016.
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Annexure C

DETAILS OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR
(Pursuant to section 197 (12) read with Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel), Rules, 2014)
The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other
details in terms of sub-section 12 of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
Particulars

Remarks

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for the financial year

Executive Director
Mr. Upinder Zutshi - Managing Director & CEO - 59.74
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal – Independent Director - 0.61
Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal – Independent Director - 0.58
Mr. Ravindra RamaRao Turaga - Independent Director - 0.26
Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg - Independent Director - 0.41
Mrs. Sadhana Dikshit - Independent Director - 0.23

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager,if any, in the financial year

Executive Director
Mr. Upinder Zutshi - Managing Director & CEO - 7.0%
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal – Independent Director - 5%
Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal – Independent Director - No Change
Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga - Independent Director - (43.75%)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg - Independent Director - 75%
Ms. Sadhana Dikshit - Independent Director - 33.33%
KMPs (other than Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Sanjeev Gulati – Chief Financial Ofﬁcer - 4.80%
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Modi - Company Secretary- No Change

The percentage increase in the median remuneration
of employees in the financial year

(0.4%)

The number of permanent employees on the
rolls of the Company

There were 2,069 permanent employees on the rolls
of the Company, as on March 31, 2017.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of Not Applicable to the Company, as all the employees are
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last under Managerial cadre.
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration;
Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the company

It is hereby afﬁrmed that the remuneration is as per the
Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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Age
(Yrs)

Qualiﬁcations

Experience
in Years

55

B.E. (Hons)

41

Ansuman Pattanaik

22

Bachelor of Engineering

Master of Business Administration

Masters in Technology

Master of Business Administration

Master of Business Administration

26

33

18

18

20

24

MBA, B.Tech (IIT)

Master of Business Administration

32

29

35

M.S (Telecom & Software Engineering),
Illinois Institute of Technology, Chicago, USA

B.E. (Electronics)

B.Com (Hons), CA, PGDBA

33

14-Oct-15

12-Jan-15

16-Jun-05

Assistant Vice President

Assistant Vice President

Assistant Vice President

Assistant Vice President
Vice President

22-May-03

Vice President

Senior Vice President Delivery, IT Services

Senior Vice President

Senior Vice President &
Business Head APAC

Executive Vice President & CFO

CEO & Managing Director

Designation

10-Mar-14

9-Apr-12

12-Aug-13

03-Feb-11

15-Nov-06

01-Jan-07

01-Feb-03

Date of
Joining

Contractual
Contractual

7,037,882
6,223,312

Contractual
Contractual

3,708,923

Contractual

Contractual

Contractual

3,810,639

3,818,646

3,871,534

4,106,889

Contractual

Contractual

9,619,382

4,517,115

Contractual

Contractual

Nature of
Employment

9,825,436

40,639,600

Gross
Remuneration

Sd/Ajai Kumar Agrawal
Director

(DIN: 00619358)

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO

(DIN:01734121)

For Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

6. Designation indicates nature of duties.

5. None of the above other than Mr. Upinder Zutshi is Director on the Board of the Company.

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

Aricent

L&T Technology Services

Ashima Limited

BitPlus Information Technologies

L&T Infotech

Wipro Infotech

Wipro Technologies Ltd.

Headstart Ventures LLP

Intel Technology India Pvt.Ltd.

Khanna Gulati & Associates

Velocient Technologies Inc.

Previous Employment/
Designation

4. None of the employees except Mr. Upinder Zutshi hold by himself or along-with his spouse and dependent children, 2% or more of equity shares of the Company.

3. None of the employees are related to any Director of the Company.

2. All appointments are contractual and other terms and conditions are as per Company rules.

1. Remuneration comprises basic salary, allowances incentive and taxable value of perquisites.

NOTES:

50

45

Shyam P Raomohan

Rohidas Baidebettu Pai

46

Jai Gautam Mohan

42

48

Sheppard Bromﬁeld Lyngdoh

56

56

Jagannath Krishna Rao

Murugesan Kumarasamy

49

Pankaj Jaiswal

Dinesh Singh Banshiwal

59

Sanjeev Gulati

Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration excluding above

Upinder Zutshi

Employee in receipt of remuneration aggregating ₹ 10,200,000/- or more per annum

Name

Information under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014
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Annexure D

ANNEXURE TO THE BOARDS’ REPORT
Statement Pursuant to Regulation 14 'Disclosure by the Board of Directors' of SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
The Shareholders at their meeting held on August 09, 2010 approved Key Executives Performance Option Plan - 2010 and amended the same
on September 19, 2011. The Remuneration and Compensation Committee of the Directors have not granted any Stock Options during the
financial year 2016-17. The details of the Stock Option outstanding under the Key Executives Performance Option Plan - 2010 are given below:
A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the “Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based payments” issued by ICAI or any
other relevant accounting standards as prescribed from time to time.
B. Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) on issue of Ordinary Shares on Exercise of Options calculated in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 20 'Earning Per Share' is ₹ 23.94.

C. Details related to ESOS
SL No
i.

ii.

Description

a) Date of Shareholders' Approval

Remarks
:

August 09, 2010 and September 19, 2011

b) Total Number of Options Approved under the Scheme :

3,500,000

c) Vesting Requirements

The continuation of the employee in the service of the
Company shall be a primary requirement of the vesting.
The vesting period shall be as follows:

:

First 25% of the
Options granted

On completion of 12 (Twelve)
months from the date of grant

Next 25% of the
Options granted

On completion of 24 (Twenty
Four) months from the date of grant

Next 25% of the
Options granted

On completion of 36 (Thirty Six)
months from the date of grant

And the balance
25% of the Options
granted

On completion of 48 (Forty Eight)
months from the date of grant

d) Exercise Price or Pricing Formula

:

The Exercise Price per option shall be the lower of market price as
on the date of grant or the average of the one month high and low
price of the share preceding the date of grant of option on the
stock exchange on which the shares of the company is listed. If the
shares are listed on more than one stock exchange then the stock
exchange where there is highest trading volume during the
aforesaid period shall be considered.

e) Maximum Term of Options Granted

:

5 years from the date of grant

f) Source of Shares(primary, secondary or combination) :

Primary

g) Variation in Terms of Options

:

No modification was made in the Scheme during the
Financial Year 2016-17

Method used to account for ESOS

:

Based on intrinsic value method

iii. Difference between the employee compensation cost so :
computed at (ii) above and the employee compensation
cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the
fair value of the Options.
The impact of this difference on Profits and on EPS of
the Company

:

Since all the outstanding options were lapsed / surrendered
during the year 2016-17, there was no charge to P&L.

Nil
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₹ In lakhs

SL No Description
iv. Option movement during the year

Remarks

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of
the period

:

1,305,000

Number of options granted during the year

:

Number of options forfeited/lapsed/surrendered during the year

:

Nil
1,305,000

Number of options vested during the year

:

Nil

Number of options exercised during the year

:

Nil

Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options :

Nil

Money realized by exercise of options (INR), if scheme is
implemented directly by the company

:

Nil

Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise
price received

:

NA

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

:

Nil

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year

:

Nil

Weighted average exercise price and weighted average
fair value of Options granted for Options whose exercise
price either equals or exceeds or is less than the market
price of the stock
vi. Details of Options granted to

:

NA

v.

Name

No of Options

a) Senior Managerial Personnel

:

NIL

N.A

b) Any other Employees who received a grant in any one
year of options amounting to 5% or more of the options
granted during that year.

:

NIL

N.A

c) Identified Employees who were granted options during :
any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the Issued
Capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions)
of the Company at the time of grant.

NIL

N.A

:
vii. A description of the method and significant assumption
used during the year to estimate the fair values of Options
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The fair value of each options estimated using the Black
Scholes Options Pricing Model after applying the following
key assumptions
i. Risk free interest rate
ii. Expected life

N.A.

iii. Expected volatility

N.A.

iv. Expected dividend

N.A.

v. The price of the underlying
shares in market at the time
of option grant

N.A.

N.A.
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Annexure E

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2017
Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.
I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
i.

CIN

L72200DL1999PLC171077

ii. Registration Date
iii. Name of the Company

Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

iv. Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

iv. Address of the Registered office & contact details

155, Somdutt Chambers - II, 9, Bhikaji Cama Place,
New Delhi - 110066 | Tel: 011- 46150847

v.

September 6, 1999

Whether listed company

vi. Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar
& Transfer Agent, if any.

YES
Bigshare Services Private Limited
4E/8, First Floor, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi - 110055
Contact: Mr. Y. K. Singhal, Tel: 011-42425004; 011-23522373

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated
Name & Description of
main Products/Services

NIC Code of the
Product /service

% to total turnover
of the company

620

100%

Software Development & Allied Services

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Name of the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
shares held

Indian Subsidiaries
Infinite Infocity Limited
Infinite InfoComplex Private Limited
Infinite Infopark Limited
Infinite Infoworld Limited
Infinite Techhub Limited
Infinite Techworld Limited
Infinite Techcity Limited
Infinite Techsoft Limited
Infinite Skytech Limited
Infinite Thinksoft Limited
Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited
Inﬁnite Techdata Limited
Inﬁnite Techmind Limited

U72900DL2012PLC244587
U74140DL2010PTC204812
U72900DL2011PLC228365
U72200DL2010PLC206248
U72200DL2012PLC244623
U72200DL2012PLC244622
U72300DL2015PLC275377
U72900DL2015PLC275592
U72900DL2015PLC275644
U72900DL2015PLC275933
U72900DL2015PLC288069
U72900DL2015PLC283002
U72300DL2015PLC280131

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

India Comnet International Private Limited

U72300TN1995PTC032943

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Step-down
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Step-down
Subsidiary
Step-down
Subsidiary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Foreign Subsidiaries
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc, USA
Infinite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn Bhd, Malaysia
Infinite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Infinite Convergence Solutions Inc

Foreign company
Foreign company
Foreign company
Foreign company
Foreign company
Foreign company

Infinite Computer Solutions Canada Inc.

Foreign company

Infinite Carehub LLC.

Foreign company

100%

100%
51%

Applicable
section

2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
Expl (a) of
2 (87)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
2 (87) (ii)
Expl(a) of
2 (87)
Expl(a) of
2 (87)
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN [EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY]
i. Category-wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the end of the year

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

%
Change
% of Total during
the year
Shares

Category of Shareholders
Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

A. Promoters
1. Indian
a. Individual/HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b. Central Govt.or State Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,410,439

-

1,410,439

3.64

1,110,439

-

1,110,439

3.36

(0.28)

d. Bank/FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e. Any other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,410,439

-

1,410,439

3.64

1,110,439

-

1,110,439

3.36

(0.28)

a. NRI - Individuals

8,100

-

8,100

0.02

8,100

-

8,100

0.02

0.00

b. Other Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27,559,495

-

27,559,495

71.21

23,892,497

-

23,892,497

72.30

1.09

d. Banks/FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e. Any other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27,567,595

-

27,567,595

71.23

23,900,597

-

23,900,597

72.32

1.09

Total Shareholding of Promoter (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 28,978,034

-

28,978,034

74.87

25,011,036

-

25,011,036

75.68

0.81

c. Bodies Corporates

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

-

2. Foreign

c. Bodies Corp.

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a. Mutual Funds/ UTI
b. Banks/FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

29,318

-

29,318

39,678

-

39,678

0.04
-

c. Central Government

-

-

-

0.08
-

-

-

-

0.12
-

d. State Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e. Venture Capital Fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f. Insurance Companies

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,450,623

-

1,450,623

3.75

1,163,304

-

1,163,304

3.52

(0.23)

107,566

-

107,566

0.27

218,549

218,549

0.66

0.39

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,587,507

-

1,587,507

4.10

1,421,531

-

1,421,531

4.30

0.20

906,393

-

906,393

2.34

721,755

-

721,755

2.19

(0.15)

g. Foreign Portfolio Investors
h. Foreign Venture Capital
I. Others (FII)
SUB TOTAL (B)(1):
2. Non Institutions
a. Bodies corporates

-

b. Individuals

-

i. Individual shareholders holding nominal
share capital upto ₹ 1 lakhs

2,833,740

28,975

2,862,715

7.40

2,394,727

29,148

2,423,875

7.34

(0.06)

ii. Individuals shareholders holding nominal
share capital in excess of ₹ 1 lakhs

2,608,818

-

2,608,818

6.74

2,069,326

-

2,069,326

6.26

(0.48)

-

-

-

-

400
-

-

-

400
-

0.00
-

0.00
-

c. NBFCs registered with RBI
d. Others
i. Clearing Members

-

60,856

-

60,856

0.16

24,739

-

24,739

0.07

(0.09)

1,630,939

54,402

1,685,341

4.35

1,282,393

54,402

1,336,795

4.05

(0.30)

iii. Trusts

9,000

-

9,000

0.02

37,002

-

37,002

0.11

0.09

iv. Overseas Bodies Corporates

7,795

-

7,795

0.02

-

-

-

-

(0.02)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

8,057,541

83,377

8,140,918

21.03

6,530,342

83,550

6,613,892

20.02

(1.01)

Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)

9,645,048

83,377

9,728,425

25.13

7,951,873

83,550

8,035,423

24.32

(0.81)

-

-

Promoter & Promoter Group

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Public

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38,623,082

83,377

38,706,459

100.00

32,962,909

83,550

33,046,459

100.00

-

ii. Non - Residents

C. Shares Held by Custodian for GDRS & ADRS

Grand Total (A+B+C)

29|Board’s Report

TM

ii. Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
Shareholders Name

% of shares
% of total
pledged
shares of
encumbered
the company
to total shares

No of shares

Sanjay Govil

8,100

M C Data Systems Private Ltd
IT Thinkers LLC
Infinite Technologies, LLC*

% of shares
% of total
pledged
shares of
encumbered
the company
to total shares

No of shares

% Change in
shareholding
during the
year

8,100

0.02

0

0.00

0

1,110,439

3.36

0

-0.28

0

1,736,159

5.25

0

0.76

66.72

0

21,372,136

64.67

0

-2.05

-

-

784,202

2.37

0

2.37

74.87

0

25,011,036

75.68

0

0.81

0.02

0

1,410,439

3.64

1,736,159

4.49

25,823,336
28,978,034

Mahiavik LLC**
Total

Shareholding at the
end of the year

* 44,51,200 equity shares of Inﬁnite Technologies LLC transferred inter-se to Mahiavik LLC on October 28, 2016.
** 36,66,998 equity shares of Mahiavik LLC were tendered and accepted by the Company under Buy-back.

iii. Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
Shareholder Name

% of total
shares of
the company

No of shares

Shareholding at the
end of the year

Change in holding during the year
Change
(Buy/Sell)

No of shares

Date of change

No of shares

% of total
shares of
the company*

M C Data Systems Pvt. Ltd.

1,410,439

3.64

300,000

300,000 shares
bought back by
the Company
under Buy-back

09-Mar-17

1,110,439

3.36

IT Thinkers LLC

1,736,159

4.49

-

-

Infinite Technologies, LLC
Mahiavik LLC

25,823,336

66.72

4,451,200

Inter-se transfer
to Mahiavik LLC

-

-

3,666,998

36,66,998 shares
bought back by
the Company
under Buy-back

-

1,736,159

5.25

28-Oct-16

21,371,136

64.67

09-Mar-17

784,202

2.37

*The change in percentage of share holding is also due to reduction in total share capital of the company as a result of Buy-back of its equity shares.

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
Names of the Top 10
Shareholders

Neeraj Tewari

Grandeur Peak Emerging
Markets Opportunities Fund

Manulife Asia Paciﬁc Mid
and Small Cap Fund

No.of shares at
the beginning
(01/04/16)
End of the year
(31/03/2017)

% of total
shares
of the
company

762,239

1.97

637,243
529,500

1.93
1.37

404,789
503,056

1.22
1.30

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

Date

Increase/
Decrease in
Shareholding

1-Apr-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
10-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
28-Feb-17
3-May-17
10-May-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
13-May-16
20-May-16
24-Jun-16
9-Dec-16

(762,239)
762,239
300,000
175,004
(529,500)
529,500
(124,711)
19,830
9,000
(67,000)
(75,000)

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
(01/04/2016 - 31/03/2017)

Reason

No. of Shares

% of total
shares
of the
Company

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
-

762,239
0
762,239
462,239
637,243
529,500
529,500
404,789
404,789
503,056
522,886
531,886
464,886
389,886

2.31
0.00
2.31
1.40
1.93
1.60
0.00
1.60
1.22
1.22
1.52
1.58
1.61
1.41
1.18

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
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Vaibhav Vinod Bhatnagar

SLG International
Opportunities L.P

Navin Chandra

VLS Finance Ltd

Rajasthan Global Securities
Private Limited

Chetan Pankaj Gopani
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445,555
432,368

1.35
1.12

369,744
282,400

1.12
0.73

282,400
200,000

0.85
0.52

400
200,000

152,895
93282

158,358
58,921

0.00
0.52

0.46
0.24

0.48
0.15

27-Jan-17
10-Feb-17
17-Feb-17
24-Feb-17
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
10-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
14-0ct-16
9-Dec-16
16-Dec-16
23-Dec-16
10-Feb-17
17-Feb-17
24-Feb-17
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
10-Mar-17
24-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
10-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
26-Aug-16
29-Sep-16
7-Oct-16
14-Oct-16
21-Oct-16
18-Nov-16
23-Dec-16
10-Feb-17
24-Feb-17
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
10-Mar-17
17-Mar-17
24-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
15-Apr-16
22-Apr-16
29-Apr-16
6-May-16
13-May-16
20-May-16

(23,935)
25,178
21,880
32,546
(445,555)
445,555
(432,368)
432,368
(62,624)
(282,400)
282,400
(6,000)
(3,000)
(31,045)
(14,010)
(8,572)
(49,692)
(43,302)
(44,379)
40,379
(21,810)
(16,908)
(200,000)
200,000
(47,105)
54,992
7,040
16,425
32,882
85,500
(21,523)
(165,610)
1,028
17,848
(121,864)
151,138
(7,027)
9,247
5,000
-

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
-

117
3,674
9,076
11,020
10,467
2,725

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
-

365,951
391,129
413,009
445,555
445,555
445,555
432,368
432,368
369,744
369,744
282,400
282,400
282,400
200,000
194,000
191,000
159,955
145,945
137,373
87,681
44,379
40,379
18,569
1,661
400
200,000
200,000
152,895
152,895
93282
148,274
155,314
171,739
204,621
290,121
268,598
102,988
104,016
121,864
151,138
144,111
153,358
158,358
158,358
58,921
59,038
62,712
71,788
82,808
93,275
96,000

1.11
1.18
1.25
1.35
0.00
1.35
1.35
1.31
0.00
1.31
1.12
1.12
0.85
0.00
0.85
0.85
0.61
0.59
0.58
0.48
0.44
0.42
0.27
0.13
0.00
0.12
0.06
0.01
0.00
0.61
0.00
0.61
0.46
0.46
0.28
0.45
0.47
0.52
0.62
0.88
0.81
0.31
0.31
0.37
0.00
0.46
0.44
0.46
0.48
0.48
0.18
0.18
0.19
0.22
0.25
0.28
0.29

TM

Pankaj Mahasukh Gopani

132,438
72,960

27-May-16
10-Jun-16
24-Jun-16
30-Jun-16
1-Jul-16
8-Jul-16
15-Jul-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
31-Mar-17
1-Apr-16
8-Apr-16
15-Apr-16
22-Apr-16
29-Apr-16
6-May-16
13-May-16
20-May-16
27-May-16
3-Jun-16
10-Jun-16
28-Feb-17
3-Mar-17
31-Mar-17

0.40
0.19

120,357

0.36

18,300
3,725
3,100
2,740
1,160
3,413
4,000
(132,438)
132,438
-

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer

1,557
43
2,850
1,000
13,000
10,000
3,590
5,861
4,862
4,634
(120,357)
120,357
-

Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
Transfer
-

-

114,300
118,025
121,125
123,865
125,025
128,438
132,438
132,438
132,438
72,960
74,517
74,560
77,410
78,410
91,410
101,410
105,000
110,861
115,723
120,357
120,357
120,357

0.35
0.36
0.37
0.37
0.38
0.39
0.40
0.00
0.40
0.40
0.22
0.23
0.23
0.23
0.24
0.28
0.31
0.32
0.34
0.35
0.36
0.00
0.36
0.36

v. Shareholding of Directors & KMP
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

Name of Directors & KMP
Sanjay Govil
Upinder Zutshi
Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Narendra Kumar Agrawal
Ajai Kumar Agrawal
Ashok Kumar Garg
Sadhana Dikshit
Sanjeev Gulati
Rajesh Kumar Modi

No. of
Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

No. of
Shares

% of total Shares
of the Company

8,100
1,358,946
550
-

0.02
3.51
0.00
-

0.02
3.18
0.00
-

-

-

8,100
1,051,731
550
-

% change in
shareholding
during the year
0.00
(0.33)
0.00
-

-

-

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans
excluding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
a. Principal Amount
b. Interest due but not paid
c. Interest accrued but not due
TOTAL (A+B+C)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Additions
Reduction
NET CHANGE
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
a. Principal Amount
b. Interest due but not paid
c. Interest accrued but not due
TOTAL (A+B+C)

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

NIL
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VI. REMUNERATION DETAILS
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Amount in ₹

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager
Mr. Upinder Zutshi - MD & CEO

Particulars of Remuneration
Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961.
b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission as % of Profit
Others (specify)
Others, please specify
TOTAL (A)
CEILING AS PER THE ACT

40,600,000
39,600
40,639,600
59,888,616

Remuneration to other Directors
Particulars of Remuneration
Independent Directors

Mr.Ravindra
R Turaga

Name of the Directors
Mr. Ajai K
Mr. Ashok
Agrawal
K Garg

Mrs. Sadhana
Dikshit

Total Amount

160,000

1,020,000

160,000

1,020,000

a. Fee for attending Board &
180,000
400,000
280,000
committee meetings (in INR)
b. Commission
c. Others, please specify
TOTAL (1)
400,000
280,000
180,000
Mr. Sanjay Govil Mr.Narendra K Agrawal
Other Non-Executive Directors
a. Fee for attending Board &
420,000
committee meetings (in INR)
b. Commission
c. Others, please specify
TOTAL (2)
420,000
TOTAL (B) = (1+2)
180,000
820,000
280,000
Total Managerial Remuneration (in INR)
Overall Ceiling as per the Act. (in INR)

420,000
-

420,000

160,000
1,440,000
11,977,723

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars of Remuneration
Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income Tax. 1961.
b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission as % of Profit
Others (specify)
Others, please specify
Total
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CEO

CFO
Mr. Sanjeev
Gulati

Company
Secretary
Mr. Rajesh K. Modi

Total
Amount

9,807,436

2,300,966

12,108,402

18,000

6,000

24,000

9,825,436

2,306,966

12,132,402

As provided
above

TM

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type

section of
the
Companies
Act, 2013

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty/Punishment
/Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
(RD/NCLT/
Court)

Appeal
made if
any (give
details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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Annexure F

FORM NO. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014]
To,
The Members,
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited
CIN: L72200DL1999PLC171077
155, Somdutt Chambers II 9, Bhikaji Cama Place,
New Delhi – 110066
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances, and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2017, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2017 according to the provisions of:
i.

The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the Rules made thereunder and the relevant provisions of The Companies Act, 2013;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2009 – Not
Applicable as the Company did not issue any security during the Financial Year under review.
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 in relation to Employee Stock Option Scheme;
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 – Not applicable as the
Company has not issued any debt securities during the financial year under review.
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review.
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 – Not applicable as the Company
has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial year under review; and
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
vi. The Company has identified the following laws as specifically applicable to the Company:
a. The Special Economic Zone Act, 2005
b. Policy relating to Software Technology Parks of India and its Regulations
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:
i.

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)

ii

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance
Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion
that the management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and ensure
compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines; and
As informed, the Company has responded to notices for demands, claims, penalties etc. levied by various statutory/regulatory authorities
and initiated actions for corrective measures, wherever necessary.
We further report that during the audit period the company has completed the Buy-back offer and has bought back a total of 56,60,000 (Fifty
Six Lakhs Sixty Thousand only) Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each at the price of ₹ 265/- per share, utilizing a total amount of ₹ 149,99,00,000/(Rupees One Hundred Forty Nine Crores Ninety Nine Lakhs only) (excluding the transaction cost) which represents 100% of the maximum
Buy-back size. The Promoters shareholding as on March 31, 2017 was 75.68% pursuant to the Buy-back of shares. The Promoter/Promoter
Group will reduce their shareholding to achieve Minimum Public Shareholding within the time frame permitted as per the applicable laws.
There are no other specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations guidelines etc., having a major bearing
on the Company's Affairs.

For HBP & Co
Company Secretaries

Sd/Pramod S M
Partner
FCS 7834 / CP No. 13784

Place : Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2017
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Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited
CIN: L72200DL1999PLC171077
155, Somdutt Chambers II 9, Bhikaji Cama Place,
New Delhi – 110066
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express as
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company its officers, authorised representatives during the
conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly compliance report by the respective departmental heads/Company
Secretary/Managing Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems and process and
control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable general laws like labour laws & Environment
laws and Data protection policy.
8. We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws has not been
reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors and other designated
professionals.

For HBP & Co
Company Secretaries

Sd/Pramod S M
Partner
FCS 7834 / CP No. 13784
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Annexure G

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]
The Corporate Social Responsibility is a form of corporate self-regulation integrated into a business model. CSR policy functions as a
self-regulatory mechanism whereby a business monitors and ensures its active compliance with the spirit of the law, ethical standards
and national or international norms.
CSR aims to embrace responsibility for corporate actions and to encourage a positive impact on the environment and stakeholders
including consumers, employees, investors, communities, and others.
The CSR policy institutes a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR activities with the constitution of the CSR
Committee of the Company.

A. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:
1. Ashok Kumar Garg

Chairman

2. Ajai Kumar Agrawal
3. Ravindra Ramarao Turaga

Member
Member

Terms of reference:
i.

eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting healthcare including preventive healthcare and sanitation including
contribution to the Swach Bharat Kosh set up by the Central Government for the promotion of sanitation and making available
safe drinking water;

ii. promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children,
women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;
iii. promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age
homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward groups;
iv. ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation
of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water including contribution to the Clean Ganga Fund set up by the
Central Government for rejuvenation of river Ganga;
v. protection of natural heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and works of
art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;
vi. measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;
vii. training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;
viii. contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic
development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;
ix. contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the
Central Government;
x. rural development projects;
xi. slum area development
Explanation: For the purpose of this item 'slum area' shall mean any area declared as such by the Central Government or any
State Government or any other Competent Authority under any law for the time being in force.

B. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST 3 FINANCIAL YEARS
₹ in Million

Particulars
Profit Before Tax (Per Indian GAAP)

FY 2015-16

FY 2014-15

FY 2013-14

1, 137.90

1,258.04

657.89

(0.11)

(0)

(0.33)

1,137.79

1,258.04

657.56

Adjustments under Sec 198
Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed assets

Adjusted Profit for CSR
Average Profit

1,017.80

2% of Average Profits

20.36
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C. PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE
₹ 20.36 Million

D. DETAILS OF CSR SPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
i.

Total amount spent for the financial year: ₹ 4.50 Million

ii. Amount unspent, if any: ₹ 15.86 Million
iii. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year:
 Sparsha Trust, an NGO, working towards sustainable development of street children. Sparsha operates two open shelters,

three residential centers covering 250 vulnerable and underprivileged children in crisis. Basic needs of children namely food,
shelter, clothing and health check-up are provided at these centres. The purpose of the program is to promote “Rights of the
children” and “Right to Education”.
 Gopalan Foundation. This Foundation was established in 2004 in Bengaluru, which is in the field of education, construction,

SEZ, Software Technology park etc. It looks after the CSR activities of Gopalan Enterprises that has adopted 5000
impoverished children in and around Bangalore. These children are provided free education and are constantly endeavour to
make their life a better one.
 Bhanumati Ramesh Shah Charitable Trust, a registered Trust (2012) involved in the field of providing and promoting free

education, food, Medical Aids, shelters and clothes to needy and poor children

E. IN CASE THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND THE TWO PERCENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF
THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS OR ANY PART THEREOF, THE COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE THE
REASONS FOR NOT SPENDING THE AMOUNT IN ITS BOARD REPORT:
During the year, Company has joined hands with Sparsha Trust, Gopalan Foundation and Bhanumati Ramesh Shah Charitable
Trust, a registered Trust for undertaking its CSR activities. The activities were focused towards promoting education among kids,
sustainable development of street children and providing and promoting free education, food, Medical Aids, shelters and clothes to
needy and poor children, in due compliance of provisions of section 135 of the Act. Though the Company is fully committed to meet
its CSR obligation, but as conscious decision, it doesn't want to undertake any activity, just to meet its obligation, without serving the
desired purpose. The Company is continuously exploring with various NGO's and charitable organizations to evaluate various
projects/programme related to CSR.

F. A RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT BY THE CSR COMMITTEE THAT THE IMPLEMENTATION AND
MONITORING OF CSR POLICY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CSR OBJECTIVES AND POLICY OF THE
COMPANY:
The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

For & on Behalf of the Board

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO

Sd/Ashok Kumar Garg
Chairman of CSR Committee

(DIN:01734121)

(DIN:03504609)

39|Board’s Report

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

TM

Annexure H

FORM NO. AOC.2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length
transactions under third proviso thereto.
1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARMS’ LENGTH BASIS:
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2017, which were not at
arm's length basis.

2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARMS’ LENGTH BASIS:
i. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
Enterprises where control exists
Wholly owned Subsidiaries
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc., USA
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Canada Inc.
Inﬁnite Carehub LLC

% of holding
100%
100%
51%

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K

100%

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore

100%
100%

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia

Country of Incorporation
USA
Canada
USA
United Kingdom
Singapore
Malaysia

100%
100%

Hong Kong

100%

India

100%
100%

India

100%
100%

India

100%

India

100%
100%

India

Inﬁnite Techcity Limited
Inﬁnite Techsoft Limited
Inﬁnite Skytech Limited

100%
100%

India

Inﬁnite Thinksoft Limited

100%

India

Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited

100%

India

Inﬁnite Techdata Limited

100%

India

Inﬁnite Techmind Limited

100%

India

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
India Comnet International Pvt. Ltd.
Inﬁnite Infocomplex Pvt Ltd
Inﬁnite Infoworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infopark Limited
Inﬁnite Techhub Limited
Inﬁnite Techworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infocity Limited

USA

India
India

India
India

Key Managerial Personnel
Name

Designation

Mr. Sanjay Govil
Mr. Upinder Zutshi

Chairman
Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Sanjeev Gulati

Executive Vice President & CFO

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Modi

Company Secretary
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ii. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
Disclosure of transactions between the Company and Related Parties and the status of outstanding balances
With Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)
Particulars

₹ in Million

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Duration of Contract

A. Revenue
Subsidiary Companies
Sale
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc, USA

1672.73

1,613.67

Contract start from 1st Oct 1999
and updated time to time.

748.64

1,057.56

Contract start from 1st Oct 2010
and updated time to time.

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia

-

0.44

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore

23.77

26.36

Contract start from 1st Oct 2013.
Contract start from 1st Apr 2014

Instos Inc

-

89.97

Contract start from 1st Oct 2015

Dividend
Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions Inc, USA

-

-

Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions Inc, USA

Companies under same management

B. Expenses
Subsidiary Companies
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc, USA
Contractual Services
Companies under same management

Contract start from 1st Jan 2002
and updated time to time.
8.28

6.05

N C Data Systems Pvt Ltd
Rent

5 year from 1st April 2012
19.51

12.24

8.27

6.45

Non Whole Time director of the Company
Sanjay Govil
Rent
Key Managerial Persons
Sanjeev Gulati & his relatives
Rent

3 year from 1st Jan 2014

Start from 1st Apr 2009,
revised till Mar 2018
0.53

0.50

40.64

37.97

Directors of the company
Managerial Remuneration
C.

Balance outstanding as at the period end
As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

616.85
-

563.89
-

Receivables
Subsidiary Companies
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc, USA
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia

7.41

2.10

252.87
-

358.19

-

89.55

0.43

Companies under same management
Instos Inc
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₹ in Million

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Subsidiary Companies
Inﬁnite Techhub Limited

-

-

Inﬁnite Techworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infocity Limited

-

-

-

-

Inﬁnite Infoworld Ltd
Inﬁnite Infopark Ltd

-

-

-

-

Inﬁnite Techcity Limited

0.62

0.61

Inﬁnite Techsoft Limited
Inﬁnite Skytech Limited

0.61
-

0.60
-

-

-

Inﬁnite Thinksoft Limited
Investments
In Subsidiary Companies
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc, USA

229.53

229.53

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore

26.72

26.72

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

8.51

8.51

26.48

26.48

5.10

5.10

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Inﬁnite Convergence Solutions, INC.

434.57

434.57

Inﬁnite Techhub Limited

49.90

49.90

Inﬁnite Techworld Limited
Inﬁnite Infocity Limited

43.00

43.00

42.80

42.80

Inﬁnite Infocomplex Pvt Ltd

30.70

30.70

Inﬁnite Infoworld Ltd.
Inﬁnite Infopark Ltd

43.80

43.80

49.90

49.90

Inﬁnite Techcity Limited

49.50

49.50

Inﬁnite Techsoft Limited
Inﬁnite Skytech Limited

49.00

49.00

175.50

150.50

Inﬁnite Thinksoft Limited

49.50

49.50

Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited

55.00

47.50

Inﬁnite Techdata Limited

0.50

0.50

Inﬁnite Techmind Limited
Payables

0.50

0.50

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Inc, USA
(with Provision)

-

iii. Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions: As mentioned above
iv. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
Computer Software development and maintenance and related Services. Service charges are based on Internationally
recognised arm’s length principles.
v. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any
Not applicable, since the contracts were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length.
vi. Amount paid as advances, if any
NIL
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE
Your Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of the highest level of transparency, accountability and
equity in all facets of its operations and its interaction with its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, vendors, employees,
lenders, Government and the society. The Company's philosophy is built on fair and transparent governance and disclosure practices.
The Company's essential character revolves around values based on transparency, integrity, professionalism and accountability. At the
highest level, the Company endeavors continuously to improve upon these aspects. This is done by adopting innovative approaches for
leveraging resources and converting opportunities into achievements through proper empowerment and motivation, thereby fostering
a healthy growth and development of its human resources.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
Your Company's Governance Structure consists of Board of Directors, its Committees and the Management.

I. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A. Composition of Board of Directors (“Board”)
Your Company's Board has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors with considerable
experience in their respective fields. Out of 7 (seven) members on the Board, your company has a Managing Director & CEO , NonExecutive Chairman who is also the Promoter of the Company, a Non-Executive Director and 4 (Four) Independent Directors
including one Woman Director who are known for high level of experience and good governance. The Managing Director & CEO is
responsible for the overall management of the affairs of the Company under the supervision of the Board of Directors.
The composition of our Board and category of Directors along with the number of Directorships/membership of committee as
on March 31, 2017 is detailed below:
Table 1
Name of the Director

Number of
Directorships held
in other companies

Number of
Board Committee
Memberships held
in other companies

Number of
Chairmanship of
Board Committees
held in other
companies

Non - Executive

1-

-

-

Executive

3

-

-

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga Non-Executive Independent

-

-

-

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive

9

-

-

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

Non-Executive Independent

-

-

-

Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg

Non-Executive Independent

-

-

-

Mrs. Sadhana Dikshit

Non-Executive Independent

-

-

-

Mr. Sanjay Govil,
Promoter & Chairman

Mr. Upinder Zutshi,
Managing Director & CEO

Category

Note:
1. Table 1 excludes Directorships in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
2. In terms of Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the purposes of
the membership in the committee, Chairmanship/membership of Audit Committee and the Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee is considered.
As of March 31, 2017, none of the Directors are related inter-se and none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any shares/convertible
instruments of the Company
As per the disclosures received, none of the Directors of the Company hold membership in more than ten committees nor act as
a Chairman of more than five committees of Boards across all Companies where he/she holds Directorships.
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B. Independent Directors
The Independent Directors have submitted declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A statement in regard to this is given in the Boards’ Report. Further, the Independent Directors
have confirmed that they do not hold Directorship in more than 7(seven) listed companies in compliance to Regulation 25 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.
Board Meetings Procedures
The Board meets at least 4 (four) times a year i.e; atleast once in every quarter and the maximum gap between two meetings is not
more than 120 days. The Board also meets as and when necessary to address specific issues concerning the business of your
Company. The tentative annual calendar of the Board Meetings for the ensuing year is decided in advance by the Board.
The Board Meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The agenda along with the detailed explanatory notes and supporting
material is circulated to the members of the Board before each meeting to facilitate effective decision making. The Board members are
also apprised by the Managing Director & CEO on the overall performance of the Company through presentations and detailed notes.
The Board has complete access to any information within the Company which includes the information as specified in Schedule II,
Part A to Regulation 17(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and they are updated
about their roles and responsibilities in the Company.
The Board periodically reviews Compliance Reports of all laws applicable to the Company and steps taken by the Company to rectify
instances of non-compliances, if any.
The Company in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder provides for the facility to the
Directors to attend the Meetings of the Board through video conferencing mode except the meetings which are not permitted to be
carried out by video conferencing.
The proceedings of each of the meetings of the Board and its Committees are captured in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.
During the Financial Year 2016-17, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings of the Company were held on May 19, 2016; August 24, 2016;
September 29, 2016; October 12, 2016; November 14, 2016, December 09, 2016 and February 14, 2017.

Table 2
Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Name of the Director

No. of Board Meetings Attended

Whether attended the last AGM
held on September 29, 2016

Mr. Sanjay Govil

1

Yes

Mr. Upinder Zutshi

5

Yes

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga

2

No

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

7

Yes

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

7

Yes

Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg

7

Yes

Mrs. Sadhana Dikshit

7

Yes

Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors
Your Company conducts Familiarization Programs for the Independent Directors about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company,
nature of industry in which the company operates, business model and operations of the Company etc. They are also informed about the
Code of Conduct for the Board Members and the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report Insider trading etc.
The Familiarization Programs in terms of Regulation 46(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the following link:
http://infinite.com/downloads/policies/FamilizationProgrammeforIndependentDirectors.pdf

Independent Directors Meeting
The Independent Directors Meeting in accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 was held on May 19, 2016, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management.
The Independent Directors in their meeting, have assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
management and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
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Performance Evaluation
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder and Regulation 19(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 laid
down the criteria for the Performance Evaluation of the Board and every Director including Independent Directors.
Accordingly, the performance evaluation of the Board, each Director and the Committee was carried out for the financial year under
review. All the Directors were participative, interactive and communicative.

II. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board has constituted 4 (four) sub-committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
The proceedings of the meetings are captured in the same manner as the Board meeting. The minutes of the Committee meetings are
tabled at the Board meeting and the members of the Board are debriefed on the important discussions and deliberations.

A. Audit Committee
The Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in line with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. Majority of members of the
Committee are Independent Directors.
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and is into practice for the last 36 years. He heads a practicing CA firm T. Rama Rao & Co., providing professional services in the field
of Audit, Taxation, Accountancy, Company Law, Finance, Investments and Capital Market Services. All the other members of the
Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company invites such of the executives as it considers appropriate to be present at the Audit Committee meetings. The
Executive Vice President & CFO (“Head of Finance”), Statutory and the Internal Auditors are invited to attend and participate in
these meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
Composition and Attendance
During the Financial Year 2016-17, 4 (four) meetings of the Committee were held on May 19, 2016; August 24, 2016; November 14,
2016 and February 14, 2017.
The Composition of the Committee and details of the meetings held and attended by the members is as under:

Table 3
Chairman / Member

No. of Board Meetings Attended

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga Non - Executive Independent Director

Chairman

2

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive Director

Member

4

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

4

Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg*

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

4

Name of the Director

Category of Director

*Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on April 21, 2016.
Powers of the Audit Committee
i.

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

ii. To seek information from any employee.
iii. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
iv. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
1. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company.
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.
4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's Report in terms of Clause
(c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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b.

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management.

d.

Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.

e.

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to Financial Statements.

f.

Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g.

Modified opinion(s)/Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
6. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.
7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit process.
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties.
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.
12. Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and the adequacy of internal control systems.
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit department, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.
14. Discussing with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of Internal Control Systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.
16. Discussing with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. Whole Time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. of the candidate.
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
The audit committee to mandatorily review the following information
1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by management;
3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee.
6. Statement of deviations:
(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in
terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms
of Regulation 32(7).

B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Company has a duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee in line with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
Majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors.
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Composition & Attendance
During the Financial Year 2016-17, 4 (four) meetings of the Committee were held on May 19, 2016; August 24, 2016; November
14, 2016 and February 14, 2017.
The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as follows:
Table 4
Chairman/Member

No. of Board Meetings Attended

Non - Executive Independent Director

Chairman

4

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive

Member

4

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

3

Name of the Director

Category of Director

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

Terms of Reference
1. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with
prescribed criteria, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.
2. Lay down the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.
3. Carry out evaluation of every director's performance and also the performance of the Board.
4. Formulation of the criteria for determining, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.
5. Recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
While formulating the policy, the committee must ensure that:
a.

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the
quality required to run the Company successfully.

b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.
c. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.
d. Taking into account factors it deems relevant and gives due regard to the interest of shareholders and to the financial and
commercial health of the Company.
6. Devise a policy on Board diversity.
7. Administration and Superintendence of the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)
8. Formulation of detailed terms and conditions of the ESOS.
9. To determine the number of stock options to be granted under the Company's ESOS and perform such other functions as may be
specified under the SEBI (ESOS & ESPS) Guidelines, 1999.
10. To secure attendance of any person/outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary
11. Such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be
attended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Policy of the Company is based on the following criteria:





Performance of the Company, its divisions and units
Track Record, potential and individual performance
External Competitive Environment
Balance between the fixed and incentive pay

Details of the Compensation to Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any remuneration except sitting fees being paid to them in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 for attending the Board and Committee Meetings.
The details of the sitting fees paid for the Financial Year 2016-17 and the number of shares held by the Non-Executive Directors in
the Company are as follows:
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Table 5
Sitting Fee (in ₹)

Name of the Director

No.of Shares held

-

8,100

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga

180,000

550

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

420,000

NIL

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

400,000

NIL

Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg

280,000

NIL

Mrs. Sadhana Dikshit

160,000

NIL

Mr. Sanjay Govil

Details of Remuneration to Managing Director & CEO
The table below shows the amount paid to the Managing Director & CEO of the Company for the Financial Year 2016-17:
Table 6
Upinder Zutshi

Name

Managing Director & CEO

Salary & Allowances

20,300,000

Bonus/Performance Incentive

20,300,000

Perquisites

39,600

Stock options

-

Tenure

Upto March 31, 2018

Notice Period & Severance Pay

Two months' notice period and a severance pay of twelve months salary plus
1.5 months' salary for every year of service from the start date of the prior
employment contract i.e. April 01, 2008

Performance Criteria

As determined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Company has a duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee in line with Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015and the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. Majority of the
members of the Committee are Independent Directors.
The Committee has a mandate to review and redress the shareholder grievances.
Composition and Attendance
During the Financial Year 2016-17, 4(four) meetings of the Committee were held on May 19, 2016; August 24, 2016; November 14,
2016 and February 14, 2017.
The Composition of the Committee and details of the meetings attended by the members is as under.
Table 7
Chairman / Member No. of Meetings Attended

Name of the Director

Category of Director

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive

Chairman

4

Mr. Ajai Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

4

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

2

Compliance Officer
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Modi is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the company.
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Terms of Reference
a. To approve share transfers and transmissions.
b. To approve splitting of share certificates, consolidation of share certificates and related matters including issue of fresh share
certificates in lieu of split/consolidated certificates.
c. Issue of duplicate share certificates in lieu of lost, mutilated and destroyed certificates.
d. Matters relating to dematerialization of shares and securities.
e. Investor relations and redressal of shareholder's grievances in general and relating to non-receipt of dividends, interests, nonreceipts of balance sheet etc. or any other matter as the Board may think fit/delegate to the Committee.
The Company gives utmost priority to the interests of the shareholders. All the requests/complaints of the shareholders have been
resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders within the statutory time limits.
The status of the shareholders' complaints received during the Financial Year 2016-17 are as follows:
Particulars

Pending as on
April 01, 2016

Received during
the year

Disposed of during
the year

Pending as of
March 31, 2017

0

1

1

0

Complaint related to
non-receipt of dividend

D. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
The Company has a duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in line with section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. Majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors.
Composition and Attendance
During the Financial Year 2016-17, the Committee met twice on May 19, 2016 and February 14, 2017.
The Composition of the Committee and details of the meetings attended by the members is as under:
Table 8
Name of the Director

Category of Director

Chairman / Member No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg

Non - Executive Independent Director

Chairman

2

Mr. Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga

Non - Executive Independent Director

Member

1

Mr. Narendra Kumar Agrawal

Non - Executive Director

Member

2

Terms of Reference:
1. Formulate and Recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
2. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities referred in Schedule VII.
3. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.
4. Such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.
The details of the CSR initiatives of the Company form part of the CSR section in the Annual Report. The CSR Policy has been placed
on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the following link:
http://www.infinite.com/downloads/policies/CorporateSocialResponsibilityPolicy.pdf

III. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian Subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16(1) (C) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The minutes of the unlisted subsidiary companies, wherever applicable, as also any significant transaction or arrangement entered
into by any of its unlisted subsidiary companies, are placed before the Board for its noting. The Audit Committee reviews the
financial statements including investments made by the unlisted subsidiary companies of the Company.
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on November 13, 2014 approved a policy for determining “material
subsidiaries”. The said Policy has been placed on the website of the company at the below address:
http://www.infinite.com/downloads/policies/PolicyfordeterminingMaterialSubsidiaries.pdf
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IV. DISCLOSURES
A. Basis of related party transactions
There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions during the year having potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. Transactions with the Related Parties, as per the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24(Ind AS), are
disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the Financial Statements.
Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the Promoters or Directors or their subsidiaries
or their relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company.
The related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee meetings for approval on a quarterly basis. The policy on
related party transactions is placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the following link:
http://www.infinite.com/downloads/policies/PolicyonRelatedPartyTransactions.pdf

B. Disclosure of accounting treatment
The Company has not followed any differential treatment from that prescribed under Accounting Standards, for preparation of
Financial Statements during the year.

C. Board disclosures – Risk management
The Company has laid down systems to inform Audit Committee and the Board about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures. The risks and company's mitigation strategies are discussed and reviewed by Board of Directors, whenever required, to
ensure effective controls.

D. Code of Conduct
The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for its Board Members and Senior Management as required under Regulation 17 (5) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the same is posted on the Company's website.
All the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for the financial
year ended March 31, 2017and a declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director & CEO is provided in this Annual Report.
The said code can be accessed at the below link:
http://www.infinite.com/downloads/policies/CodeofConductforBoardMembersandSeniorManagement.pdf

E. Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.
There were no public issue/right issue/preferential issues etc. taken place during the Financial Year 2016-17.

F. Management
A detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis is given as a separate section in this Annual Report.
During the year, there have been no material financial and commercial transactions made by the management, where they have
personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

G. Shareholders:
i.

Means of Communication
Financial Results & Company's Website
The Company's quarterly and annual financial results and any presentation made to the analysts are posted on the Company's
website (www.infinite.com). In accordance with the Listing Regulations, the quarterly financial results are generally published in
the Business Standard (English & Hindi) editions. Financial Results and all material information are also regularly provided to
the Stock Exchanges after these are taken on record by the Board.
Investors Calls
Earnings conference calls are conducted after the announcement of quarterly/annual financial results wherein the Management
updates the investors on the progress made by the Company and also answers their queries. The call transcript is uploaded on
the website of the Company for public information.

ii. Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appointment of Directors
Detailed resume of the Director seeking re-appointment in the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are provided in the notes appended to
the Notice of 18th Annual General Meeting.
iii. The details of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are given in this report.
iv. The details of Share Transfer Systems are given in this report.
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H. Details of Non-Compliance
No penalty, strictures was imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related
to capital markets, during the Year 2016-17.

I. Details of Compliance with Mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations
During the year, the Company has complied with all applicable mandatory corporate governance requirements of the Listing
Regulations. Specifically, your Company confirms compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in Regulation 17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

J. Vigil Mechanism
The Company has established the necessary Vigil mechanism in line with Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013, for employees to report concerns about unethical
behavior. No person has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

K. CEO/CFO Certification
As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Certificate from CEO/CFO to
the Company's Board is given in the annual report (Page No. 57).

L. Details of Compliance with Non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and has adopted non-mandatory requirements as per details given below as mentioned under Part E of the Schedule II.
The Board
The Company maintains the Office of the Chairman at its Corporate Office at Plot No. 157, EPIP Zone, Phase II, Whitefield,
Bengaluru–560066 and also reimburses the expenses incurred in performance of his duties.
Shareholders Rights
The quarterly financial results are published in newspapers as mentioned above under the heading “Means of Communication”
and also displayed on the website of the Company. The results are not separately circulated to shareholders.
Audit Qualifications
There are no audit qualifications in the Company's financial statements for the year under reference.
Separate posts of Chairman and CEO
The Company has separate persons for the positions of Chairman and Managing Director.

M. Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details in respect of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company are as mentioned below:
Table 9:
Special Resolutions Passed

Financial Year Date of AGM

Venue

Time

2013-14

September 24, 2014

Sri Sathya Sai International Centre,
Pragati Vihar, Lodi Road,
New Delhi - 110003

3.00 P.M.

Creating mortgage/ charge on the
assets of the Company

2014-15

September 30, 2015

Kamani Auditorium,
No.1, Copernicus Marg,
New Delhi - 110001

11.30 A.M.

1 Appointment of Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg as
an Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 5 years w.e.f. November 13, 2014.
2. Appointment of Mrs. Sadhana Dikshit as
an Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 3 years w.e.f. February 12, 2015.

2015-16

September 29, 2016
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Special Resolution through Postal Ballot
During the year, the Company sought the approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolution through notice of postal ballot
dated August 24, 2016 for Buy-back of Equity Shares of the Company, the results of which were announced on October 08, 2016.
Mr. Prashant Balodia, Partner, M/s. PDS & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP 6153, M.No. F6047) was appointed as a
Scrutinizer for carrying out the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent manner and in accordance with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.
Details of Voting Pattern were as under:
Description of the Resolution

Approval for Buy-back of Equity Shares
through Tender Offer route at a price
not exceeding ₹ 250/- per share for
Buy-back size of ₹ 150 Crores

Votes in Favour of the Resolution

Votes against the resolution

Number of
Valid Votes
cast (Shares)

% of total
number of
Valid Votes
cast

Number of
Valid Votes
cast (Shares)

% of total
number of
Valid Votes
cast

32,579,566

99.98

7,390

0.02

However, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on October 12, 2016, approved the Buy-back of equity shares at a Buy-back
price not exceeding ₹ 270/- per share for a total consideration aggregating up to ₹ 150 crores from the existing shareholders of the
Company on the record date, through Tender Offer route, subject to the approval of regulatory authorities and the shareholders
through postal ballot notice dated November 02, 2016, results of which were announced on December 09, 2016. The Board at this
meeting also withdrew the earlier Buy-back approved by the Board of Directors on August 24, 2016 and the shareholders on
October 08, 2016. Mr. Prashant Balodia, Partner, M/s. PDS & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries (COP 6153, M.No. F6047) was
again appointed as a Scrutinizer for carrying out the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent manner and in accordance with
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.
Details of Voting Pattern were as under:
Description of the Resolution

Votes in Favour of the Resolution

Votes against the resolution

Number of
Valid Votes
cast (Shares)

% of total
number of
Valid Votes
cast

Number of
Valid Votes
cast (Shares)

% of total
number of
Valid Votes
cast

To confirm the decision of the Board of Directors
of the Company to withdraw the proposed
Buy-back approved by the Board of Directors
on August 24, 2016 and the shareholder on
October 08, 2016.

32,031,058

99.99

1,260

0.01

Approval for Buy-back of Equity Shares through
Tender Offer route at a price not exceeding
₹ 270/- per share for Buy-back size of
₹ 150 Crores

32,035,388

99.99

1,033

0.01

Procedure for postal ballot:
The Company conducted the postal ballot in accordance with the provisions of section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
22 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014. The Company has dispatched the postal ballot notice along with
the Explanatory Statement, postal ballot form and self-addressed business reply envelope to all the existing shareholders through
physical as well as electronic mode whose email was registered with Company/Depositories. The Company also published a notice in
the newspaper declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as mandated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. In compliance with the provisions of sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company had offered the facility of e-voting to its members to enable
them to cast their vote electronically. The voting under the postal ballot was kept open as per the applicable provisions of the Act. Upon
completion of scrutiny of the postal ballot forms and votes cast through e-voting in a fair and transparent manner, the scrutinizer
submitted its report to the Company and the results were announced accordingly, by the Company. The voting results were sent to the
Stock Exchanges and also displayed on the Company's website. A copy of postal ballot notice including the procedure is also available
on the websites of Stock Exchanges i.e., www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com and on the Company’s website www.infinite.com.
Details of Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:
No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot as on date of this report.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Date of Incorporation

: September 06, 1999

Registration No./CIN No.

: L72200DL1999PLC171077

Corporate Office Address

: Plot No. 157, EPIP Zone, Phase II, Kundalahalli,
Whitefield, Bengaluru – 560066.
Tel No.: 080-41930000 | Fax No.: 080-41930009
Email id: shareholder@infinite.com | Website: www.infinite.com

Registered Office/Address for Correspondence : 155, Somdutt Chambers II, 9, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110066
Tel No.: 011-46150845, 46, 47 | Fax No.: 011-46150830
Email id: shareholder@infinite.com | Website: www.infinite.com
Date, Time and Venue of 18th AGM

: September 28, 2017 at 10.30 a.m.
at Sri Sathya Sai International Centre,
Pragati Vihar, Lodi Road, New Delhi - 110003.

Book Closure Dates

: September 22, 2017 to September 28, 2017 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date

: N.A

Financial Year

: April 01, 2017 – March 31, 2018

t
7

Financial Calendar for 2017-18
(tentative and subject to change)

: Financial reporting for the first quarter ending June 30, 2017
2nd week of August 2017
: Financial reporting for the second quarter ending September 30, 2017
2nd week of November 2017
: Financial reporting for the third quarter ending December 31, 2017
2nd week of February 2018
: Financial reporting for the year ending March 31, 2018
3rd week of May 2018
: Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2018
September 2018

Listing on Stock Exchanges

: The shares of the Company are listed on the following stock exchanges

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

: Stock Code: 533154

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

: Stock Symbol: INFINITE

ISIN Number of the Company

: INE486J01014

The Company has paid the Annual Listing fee for the financial year 2017-18 to both the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE & NSE.
Registrar and Transfer Agent
(For share transfers and other communication
relating to share certificates and change of address)

: Bigshare Services Private Limited
4E/8, First Floor, Jhandewalan Extn. New Delhi-110055
Tel: 011-42425004 | Fax: 011-23522373
Contact Person: Mr. Y.K. Singhal
Email: bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com

Share Transfer System
With a view to expedite the process of share transfers, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company has delegated the
power of Share Transfer to Managing Director & CEO with appropriate limit. The Managing Director & CEO attend(s) to and approves the
share transfers received by the Company and reports the same to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee at their periodical meetings.
Dematerialization of Equity Shares
The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading in the depository systems of
both NSDL & CDSL.
As of March 31, 2017, 32,962,909 equity shares of the Company, forming 99.75% of the share capital of the Company, stands
dematerialized.
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Shareholding Pattern of the Company as of March 31, 2017
Category of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

% to Total

Promoters

25,011,036

75.68*

Corporate Bodies

721,755

2.19

Foreign Inst. Investor, FIs &Banks

1,421,531

4.30

Non Resident Indians

1,336,795

4.05

Indian Public & Others

4,555,342

13.78

33,046,459

100.00

TOTAL

*The Promoter's holding has increased due to Buy-back of shares. The Promoter/Promoter Group will reduce their shareholding
to achieve Minimum Public Shareholding as per the applicable laws.
Distribution Schedule as of March 31, 2017
No. of Shares

No. of
Shareholders

% of Total

% of Total

No. of
Shares Held

1

500

501

1000

484

1.83

379,834

1.15

1001

2000

252

0.95

373,537

1.13

25,414

96.17

1,209,472

3.66

2001

3000

74

0.28

187,133

0.56

3001

4000

35

0.13

125,624

0.38

4001

5000

40

0.15

187,359

0.57

5001

10000

57

0.22

417,037

1.26

10001

& above

TOTAL

69

0.27

30,166,463

91.29

26,425

100.00

33,046,459

100.00

Details of shares held in Suspense Account
The details of shares held in Suspense Account related to Public Issue/Initial Public Offering (IPO), which remain unclaimed
and lie in the Escrow Account of the Company as on March 31, 2017 are as follows:
Description

No. of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares.

Aggregate No. of shareholders & shares pending
at the beginning of the year

9

488

No. of shareholders who approached for transfer
of shares from suspense account during the year

Nil

Nil

No. of shareholders and shares transferred from
suspense account during the year

Nil

Nil

No. of shareholders and shares outstanding at
the end of year

9

488

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments as of March 31, 2017.
Plant Locations
The Company is in software business and does not require any manufacturing plants but has developments centers in India
and abroad.
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Market Price Data
The monthly high and low quotations of the Company's equity shares traded on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited during each month of the financial year ended March 31, 2017, are as follows:

Month

NSE

April 2016
May 2016
June 2016
July 2016
August 2016
September 2016
October 2016
November 2016
December 2016
January 2017
February 2017
March 2017

BSE

High (₹)

Low (₹)

High (₹)

Low (₹)

247.50
239.90
221.75
213.50
238.20
233.75
249.80
245.50
253.00
239.00
255.00
249.00

190.00
205.00
194.30
203.10
188.50
220.50
228.15
230.05
209.00
222.00
220.30
218.10

224.00
241.00
221.85
215.00
239.10
233.95
251.00
245.95
253.20
236.85
277.00
249.50

194.00
205.00
196.30
199.10
189.65
221.30
228.00
228.10
210.05
222.85
221.55
218.20

Share performance chart of the Company in comparison to broad based indices
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Corporate Governance Certificate
In compliance with Regulation 34 and Schedule V of Listing Regulations, a certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance has been placed at the end of this Report.
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE
Regarding Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
TO THE MEMBERS OF
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited
We have examined all the relevant records of Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited for the purpose of certifying compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the period from April 01, 2016 up to March 31, 2017. We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification.
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance.
This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable.

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

CODE OF CONDUCT
Declaration regarding compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with
the Company's Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management
I, Upinder Zutshi, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited (“the Company”)
confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for its Board Members and senior management personnel and the
Code is available on the Company's website.
I, further confirm that the Company has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2017, received from its Board Members as well
as senior management personnel affirmation as to compliance with the Code of Conduct.

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
Certificate by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as per Regulation 17(8) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015
The Board of Directors
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited
We, Upinder Zutshi, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Sanjeev Gulati, Chief Financial Officer of the company, certify to
the Board that:
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017 and that to the best of their
knowledge and belief:
i.

statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee.
i.

significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and
iii. instances of significant fraud of which we are aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee
having a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INFINITE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company” or “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at March 31, 2017, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. While conducting the
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers Internal Financial Control relevant to the Holding Company's preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Holding Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the Consolidated Financial position of the Group, as at March 31, 2017 and its
Consolidated Financial performance including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in
equity for the year then ended.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements/financial information of twenty one (21) subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial
statements/financial information reflect total assets of ₹ 13274.00 million as at March 31, 2017, total revenues of ₹ 22494.34 million
and net cash inflows amounting to ₹ 681.52 million for the twelve months ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2017 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the Statutory Auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2017
from being appointed as a Director of that company in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

the company has no pending litigations having any significant impact on the Consolidated Financial Position of the Group
requiring any disclosure in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii. no provision was required in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long term contracts including derivatives contracts.;
iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India; and
iv. the Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as to holdings as well as
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016, refer Note K to the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

59|Consolidated Financial Statements

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

TM

ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31,
2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting insofar as it relates to 14 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls System over Financial Reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

Notes

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

1

1,742.04

1,668.46

1,317.99

Capital work-in-progress

2

0.04

0.83

11.01

Other Intangible assets

3

800.93

952.13

981.50

Goodwill

4

666.34

683.46

640.55

Financial Assets
- Investments

5

14.59

14.92

14.08

Deferred tax assets, (net)

6

243.82

236.61

176.12

Other non-current assets

7

Total Non-current assets - A

481.96

741.63

505.04

3,949.72

4,298.04

3,646.29

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables

8

6,385.26

5,250.02

4,745.46

- Cash and cash equivalents

9

2,811.39

3,113.55

1,856.33

- Bank Balances other than above

10

1.41

1.42

1.60

- Loan

11

64.88

61.60

72.08

- Other current ﬁnancial assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)

12

2,467.56

2,502.00

2,033.46

13

2,281.57

1,994.05

1,556.17

Other current assets

14

439.10

531.34

606.23

Total Current assets - B

14,451.17

13,453.98

10,871.31

Total Assets - A+B

18,400.89

17,752.02

14,517.60

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital

15

330.46

387.06

401.56

16

8,344.60

8,728.32

7,513.11

8,675.06

9,115.38

7,914.67

16 A

(0.72)

-

-

Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings

17

2.68

2.73

3.56

Provisions

18

55.63

45.95

41.44

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

19

201.02
-

301.91
-

227.64
-

259.33

350.59

272.64

Other Equity
Total Equity - C
Minority Interest
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-current liabilities - D
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Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

Notes

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings

20

1,357.24

690.89

587.38

- Trade payables

21

2,976.93

1,822.06

1,580.34

- Other ﬁnancial liabilities

22

225.94

544.03

20.27

Other current liabilities

23

1,024.12

1,112.53

1,025.12

Provisions

24

1,613.02

2,347.47

1,632.87

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

25

2,269.97

1,769.07

1,484.31

9,467.22

8,286.05

6,330.29

18,400.89

17,752.02

14,517.60

Total Current liabilities - E
Total Equity and Liabilities - C+D+E
Notes on Accounts
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As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary
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Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

TM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Notes

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Revenue from operations

26

23,662.82

21,083.00

Other income

27

119.80

158.00

23,782.62

21,241.00

20,216.99

17,529.74

Particulars
Income

Total Income
Expenses
Manpower Expenses

28

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

29

Other expenses

30

Total expenses
Proﬁt/(loss) before exceptional items and tax

10.56

11.98

377.25

477.47

1,526.29

1,638.10

22,131.09

19,657.29

1,651.53

1,583.71

-

-

1,651.53

1,583.71

633.65

411.94

0.08
(135.99)

0.03

Exceptional items
Proﬁt/(loss) before tax
Tax Expenses
Current tax
Previous year taxes
Deferred tax

(54.00)

Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement
Total Tax Expenses
Net Proﬁt for the year
Share of Minority Interest - Proﬁt / (Loss)
Net Proﬁt for the year After Minority Interest

14.80
(53.40)

443.74

373.37

1,207.79

1,210.34

(1.05)

-

1,208.84

1,210.34

16.47
(5.64)

(2.94)

5.50
(2.12)

18.36
(7.09)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt plan actuarial gains/ (losses)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss

1.03

Items that will be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Remeasurement of Unbilled Receivable
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the period

14.21

9.36

1,223.05

1,219.70

Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic

31.52

30.83

(2) Diluted

31.52

30.56

Notes on Accounts
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As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2016

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Interest Income
Interest Expense
(Proﬁt)/Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Effect of Exchange Differences on translation of
foreign currency cash and cash equivalents

1,651.52

1,583.72

377.25
(114.24)
10.56
13.66
7.06

477.47
(84.51)
11.98
(0.27)
-

16.63

0.70

Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt plan actuarial gains/ (losses)
Operating Proﬁt before working capital changes
Adjusted for:
Accounts Receivable
Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
Current Liabilities and Provisions
Cash Generated from Operations
Income Tax paid

16.47
1,978.91

(2.94)
1,986.15

(1,296.40)
134.21
269.47
191.79
1,277.98
(443.64)
51.95
886.29

(227.76)
110.98
(588.71)
1,263.81
2,544.47
(563.57)
0.22
1,981.12

(388.22)
4.82
111.11
(10.22)
(282.51)

(628.60)
5.75
90.28
(11.98)
(544.55)

0.33
(1,510.10)
788.43
(91.79)
(813.13)
(209.35)

(286.84)
502.80
(425.36)
(209.40)
1,227.17

(92.82)
3,114.97
2,812.80
(209.35)

29.88
1,857.92
3,114.97
1,227.17

Income Tax Refund
Net Cash from Operating Activities [A]
B) Cash ﬂow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Proceeds on Sale of Fixed Assets
Interest received
Interest paid
Net Cash used in Investment Activities [B]
C) Cash ﬂow from Financing Activities:
Minority Interest
Payment for Share Buy-back
Proceeds from Borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash used in Financing Activities [C]
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents ([A]+[B]+[C])
Effect of Exchange Difference on translation of foreign currency
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the period
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary
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Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017

TM

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

1,742.04
1,742.04

1,668.46
1,668.46

1,317.99
1317.99

0.04
0.04

0.83
0.83

11.01
11.01

800.93
800.93

952.13
952.13

981.50
981.50

666.34
666.34

683.46
683.46

640.55
640.55

14.59
14.59

14.92
14.92

14.08
14.08

236.61
7.21
243.82

176.12
60.49
236.61

69.40
106.72
176.12

481.96
481.96

461.69
279.94
741.63

505.04
505.04

494.45
5,890.81
7.44
6,392.70
7.44
6,385.26

434.46
4,815.56
6.10
5,256.12
6.10
5,250.02

272.63
4,472.83
21.49
4,766.95
21.49
4,747.46

0.49

1.08

1.60

636.85
152.08
1,130.83
884.60
6.54
2,811.39

300.93
391.38
1,070.17
1,344.01
5.98
3,113.55

305.68
366.95
178.09
985.80
18.21
1856.33

NOTE 10 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE
Balance in Bank account kept for Dividend Payment
0.83
Balance in Bank account kept for Share Application money refund 0.58
1.41

0.84
0.58
1.42

0.87
0.73
1.60

61.60
61.60

72.08
72.08

NOTE 1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment - Net Carrying amount
(*see the Note 1-A for further detail)
NOTE 2 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Capital work in Progress - Net Carrying amount

NOTE 3 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other Intangible assets - Net Carrying amount
(*see the Note 1-A for further detail)
NOTE 4 GOODWILL
Goodwill arises due to consolidation

NOTE 5 FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENT
Investment in Shares

NOTE 6 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Adjustments for the current year / period

NOTE 7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Advances
Unbilled receivables

NOTE 8 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured Considered Good
- More than 6 months
- Others
Unsecured Considered Doubtful
Provision for Bad and doubtful debts

NOTE 9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in Hand
Balances with Noted Banks in Indian Rupees
In Current Accounts
In EEFC Account
Balances with Bank accounts - outside India
Bank Deposits - Maturity within 12 months
Bank Deposits held against Guarantees

NOTE 11 LOANS
Security Deposits - Unsecured considered good

64.88
64.88
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

25.14
2,239.04
131.69
71.69
2,467.56

22.36
2,301.78
83.10
94.76
2,502.00

27.69
1,913.10
70.81
21.86
2,033.46

2,281.57
2,281.57

1,994.05
1,994.05

1,556.17
1,556.17

155.18
5.20
278.72
439.10

147.61
159.01
224.72
531.34

298.29
136.62
171.32
606.23

500.00
500.00

500.00
500.00

500.00
500.00

330.46
330.46

387.06
387.06

401.56
401.56

38.71
5.66
33.05

40.16
1.45
38.71

40.44
0.01
0.29
40.16

164.22
164.22
-

436.56
272.34
164.22

468.42
0.48
32.34
436.56

322.38
322.38

322.38
322.38

322.38
322.38

53.66
56.60
110.26

39.16
14.50
53.66

36.22
2.94
39.16

(5.28)
10.82
3.37
8.91

(14.64)
(1.91)
11.27
(5.28)

-

7,050.01
1,208.84
1,285.75
56.60
6,916.50

5,854.17
1,210.34
14.50
7,050.01

4,829.99
1,128.83
101.71
2.94
5,854.17

NOTE 12 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIALS ASSETS
Interest accrued but not due
Unbilled receivables
Other receivables
Advances recoverable from employees

NOTE 13 CURRENT TAX - NET
Advance income tax (net)

NOTE 14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses
Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement
Share application money-pending allotment

NOTE 15 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
50,000,000 Equity shares @ ₹ 10 each.

As at April 01, 2015

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
33,046,459 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid.
(Previews year 38,706,459 equity shares)

Other Information
Number of Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each
Opening Balance
Add: issue of Shares under ESOP
Less: Shares Buy-back

NOTE 16 OTHER EQUITY
i. Security Premium
Opening Balance
Add: Share Premium received on issue of ESOP Shares
Less: Utilization for Share Buy-back
ii.

General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt and Loss Account

iii. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt & Loss Account
iv. Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance
Add: Remesurement of deﬁned beneﬁt Liabilities
Add: Adjustment of unbilled
v.

Proﬁt & Loss Account
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt & Loss Account
Less: Amount utilised for Share Buy-back/Other Adjustment

Less: Amount transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
vi. Forex Translation Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Forex difference eliminations
Add: For the period
Total of Other Equity
NOTE 16A MINORITY INTEREST
Minority Interest in Net worth
Minority Interest in proﬁt for the year
NOTE 17 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Vehicle loans from Kotak Mahindra Bank
NOTE 18 PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneﬁts
NOTE 19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Adjustments for the current year
Net Deferred Tax Liability
NOTE 20 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Working Capital Loan
NOTE 21 TRADE PAYABLE
Trade Payable - Others
NOTE 22 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank
Unearned Revenue
Unpaid dividends
Share Application money refundable
NOTE 23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers
Taxes Payable - Sales Tax, Service Tax and WHT
Other liabilities
Other Payable to Employee
NOTE 24 PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Others provisions
NOTE 25 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Provisions for taxes

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

1,143.33
(0.41)
(156.37)
986.55
8,344.60

860.84
(0.75)
283.24
1,143.33
8,728.32

701.61
2.29
156.94
860.84
7,513.11

0.33
(1.05)
(0.72)

-

-

2.68
2.68

2.73
2.73

3.56
3.56

55.63
55.63

45.95
45.95

41.44
41.44

301.91
(100.89)
201.02

227.64
74.27
301.91

349.34
(121.70)
227.64

1,357.24
1,357.24

690.89
690.89

587.38
587.38

2,976.93
2,976.93

1,822.06
1,822.06

1,580.34
1,580.34

1.54
222.99
0.83
0.58
225.94

2.21
540.40
0.84
0.58
544.03

1.65
17.03
0.87
0.72
20.27

190.49
77.77
109.16
646.70
1,024.12

167.56
12.85
162.58
769.54
1,112.53

274.12
(12.50)
139.55
623.95
1,025.12

97.45
1,515.57
1,613.02

93.96
2,253.51
2,347.47

82.56
1,550.31
1,632.87

2,269.97
2,269.97

1,769.07
1,769.07

1,484.31
1,484.31
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND
LOSS ACCOUNT FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
NOTE 26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services
Domestic Sales
Export Sales
NOTE 27 OTHER INCOME
Interest on Bank Deposits
Proﬁt/(Loss) on Sale of Assets
Miscellaneous Income
Rental Income
Exchange (Loss)/Gain - Net
NOTE 28 MANPOWER EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Contractual Services
NOTE 29 FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Loans
NOTE 30 OTHER EXPENSES
Rent & Hire Charges
Repairs & Maintenance
Building
Plant & Machinery
Vehicles
Others
Security Charges
Insurance
Communication Expenses
Recruitment Expenses
Legal & Professional Charges
Software Expenses
Project Expenses
Business Promotion
Traveling & Conveyance
Printing & Stationery
Electricity, Water and Fuel
Seminar, Training, Membership and Subscriptions
Provision for Bad Debts
Bad Debts Written off
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets
Auditors' Remuneration
Rates & Taxes
Directors Sitting Fee
Old Balance written off
Exchange Loss/(Gain) - Net
Bank Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses
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Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

1,157.86
22,504.96
23,662.82

1,359.12
19,723.88
21,083.00

114.24
5.26
0.30
119.80

84.51
0.90
8.16
64.43
158.00

8,675.56
147.57
262.10
11,131.76
20,216.99

7,887.42
118.17
231.55
9,292.60
17,529.74

10.56
10.56

11.98
11.98

139.36

158.13

9.99
14.88
0.44
35.55
13.15
50.74
56.91
57.84
244.14
220.72
67.76
81.35
235.88
17.50
48.48
109.62
7.06
2.30
13.66
6.30
21.16
1.90
(3.85)
40.74
13.91
18.80
1,526.29

5.65
10.71
0.56
34.79
15.01
51.49
57.75
50.11
224.47
132.35
220.55
142.26
245.41
17.40
68.15
110.79
33.64
0.63
5.94
22.20
1.91
0.38
13.18
14.64
1,638.10

10.80

179.63

4,600.54

Previous Year
638.79

389.02

47.43

2,147.48
5,388.50

GRAND TOTAL (A+B)

-

31.91
10.00

Franchisee Fee
Total of Intangible Assets (B)

Goodwill

Software

47.43
-

3,241.02

2,105.57

341.59

70.47

Electrical Installations
Total of Tangible Assets (A)

Intangible Assets

0.14

40.33

Plant & Machinery

8.13
-

13.51

58.09

Vehicles
Leasehold Improvements
1,019.37

2.08

IT & Networking Equipments

17.95

161.97
213.41

37.01

Ofﬁce Equipment

178.08

274.75
641.30

Computers

Furniture & Fixtures

73.89

Additions
during the
Year

581.70

As at
April 1,
2016

0.97

149.17

151.20

42.57

0.72
-

41.85

108.63

10.69

25.37
-

39.38

6.11

8.84

5,388.50

5,626.32

2,152.34

10.00

31.19

2,111.15

3,473.98

59.92

40.33

1,002.13

151.05

65.49

206.65

178.95

661.04

452.83

17.27

655.59

As at
March 31,
2017

-

Adjustments
/Sold during
theYear

GROSS BLOCK AT COST

Land
Buildings

Tangible Assets

Particulars

Note : 1-A

Consolidated Fixed Assets as on March 31, 2017

2,301.06

2,767.92

1,195.34

0.50

11.61

1,183.23

1,572.58

46.50

24.65

645.55

133.97

34.84

96.53

114.07

444.50

31.97

-

As at
April 1,
2016

477.47

377.25

156.07

1.00

0.10

154.97

221.18

3.34

3.78

77.89

16.41

6.53

18.32

14.97

74.72

5.22

-

Provided
during the
Year

(10.62)

61.82

1,351.41

-

2,767.91

3,083.35

1.50

11.71

-

1,338.20

1,731.94

45.86

28.43

718.62

113.77

39.49

111.85

128.58

508.15

37.19

-

As at
March 31,
2017

-

61.82

3.98

4.82
-

36.61

1.88

3.00

0.46

11.07

-

-

Adjustments
/Sold during
theYear

DEPRECIATION

2,620.59

2,542.97

800.93

8.50

19.48

772.95

1,742.04

14.06

11.90

283.51

37.28

26.00

94.80

50.37

152.89

415.64

655.59

As at
March 31,
2017

2,611.08

942.64

20.30
-

922.34

1,668.44

23.97

15.68

373.82

45.66

23.25

116.88

47.90

196.80

242.78

581.70

As at
March 31,
2016

NET BLOCK

₹ in Million

TM
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
A. Equity Share Capital
₹ in Millions

Opening Balance

Changes in equity share
capital during the Year

Closing Balance

For FY 2016-2017

387.06

(56.60)

330.46

For FY 2015-2016

401.56

(14.50)

387.06

Particulars

B. Other Equity
₹ in Millions

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Securities
Premium

General
reserve

Capital
redemption
reserve

164.22

322.38

53.66

7,050.01

-

-

-

Transfer to retained earnings

-

-

Utilization for Share Buy-back

(164.22)

-

56.60
-

-

322.38

110.26

436.56

322.38

(272.34)

For FY 2016-2017
Balance as at April 01, 2016
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

Balance at March 31, 2017
For FY 2015-2016
Balance as at April 01, 2015
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Utilization for Share Buy-back
Balance at March 31, 2016
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164.22

Other items
of Other
Comprehensive
Income (specify
nature)

Forex
Translation
Reserve

Total
equity

(5.28)

1,143.33

8,728.30

1,208.84

14.19

(156.78)

1,066.26

(56.60)

-

-

-

(1,285.75)

-

-

(1,449.97)

6,916.50

8.91

986.55

8,344.60

39.16

5,854.17

(14.64)

860.84

7,498.47

-

-

1,210.34

9.36

282.49

1,502.17

-

14.50

(14.50)

-

-

(272.34)

53.66

7,050.01

(5.28)

1,143.33

8,728.30

322.38

Retained
Earnings

TM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 31

A. BACKGROUND
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited ('the Company'), a Public Limited Company, is a global service provider of Application
Management Outsourcing, Remote Infrastructure Management Services, R&D and Intellectual Property Leveraged Solutions and
related IT Services.
The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of the activities undertaken by the Company during the year ended
March 31, 2017.

B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i. Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
These financial statements are the Group's first Ind AS financial statements. The Group has adopted all the Ind AS standards and
the adoptions was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101-First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was
carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

ii. Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for the following material
items which have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:




Derivative financial instruments,
Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

iii. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the condensed financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the end of period/year. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

iv. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade
discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Company. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognized:


Income from software services

Revenue from time and material engagements is recognized on time proportion basis as and when the services are
rendered in accordance with the terms of the contracts with customers. In case of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognized
based on the milestones achieved as specified in the contracts, on proportionate completion basis. Unbilled revenue represents
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revenue recognized in relation to work done until the balance sheet date for which billing has not taken place. Unearned revenue
represents the billing in respect of contracts for which the revenue is not recognized. The Company collects service tax and value
added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they
are excluded from revenue.
Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the carrying amount and the effective interest rate.
Interest income is included under the head 'Other income' in the statement of profit and loss.
Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. Dividend income
is included under the head 'Other income' in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Note on disclosure in accounts regarding presentation of certain items of consultant labor expenditure
The following expenses incurred by Infinite Computer Solutions Inc., USA during the period have not been separately shown as
forming part of Consultant Labour Expense but have been netted off and reduced from the Consulting and Project Revenue in the
Profit and Loss Account. The netting-off of expenses as aforesaid is primarily in respect of revenue yielding transactions with clients
where the Company is a Core Vendor and where under other sub-tier vendors who provide services to such clients are also required
to route their billing and collection transactions through the Company as per the internal policies of such clients. The Company does
not expend any marketing effort nor does it exercise any direct control or supervision on the subsidiary vendor resources. The
Company charges and retains an agreed margin in the nature of a fee from such clients where the Company is a core vendor for
allowing the subsidiary vendors to route their business through the Company. Considering the nature of the above-referred business,
the Company is of the opinion that only the margin from these transactions should be recognized as the turnover of the Company and
not the gross revenue from these transactions for more appropriate presentation of the financial statements. Accordingly, the
expenses incurred by the subsidiary vendors are not separately shown but netted-off from the Consulting and Project Revenues. The
particulars of such pass-through transactions along with balances in debtors and creditors relating thereto are as follows:₹ in Million

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

Pass-through Revenue

3,442.41

2,943.33

Cost of Pass-through Revenue

3,319.93

2,839.20

Margin of Pass-through Revenue

122.48

104.13

Debtors Pertaining to Pass-through Revenue

745.25

639.18

Pass through debtors in unbilled revenue

174.03

172.76

Creditors Pertaining to Pass-through revenue

876.93

572.43

Pass-through creditors in provision

174.31

314.62

vi. A - Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property,
Plant and Equipment that are not ready to be put to use. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
is added to its book value only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period/year during which such expenses are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is disposed.

B - Intangible Assets
Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is disposed.
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Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible
asset when the Company can demonstrate:







Technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
Its intention to complete the asset;
Its ability to use or sell the asset;
How the asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Such development expenditure, until capitalization, is reflected as intangible assets under development. Following the initial
recognition, internally generated intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Amortization of internally generated intangible asset begins when the development is complete and the asset is
available for use.
Goodwill arising on amalgamation of Subsidiary-Comnet International Co is to be carried at its present value without further
amortization in future but subject however to testing for impairment annually.

vii. Depreciation
Depreciation on all fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets as specified in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on addition to fixed assets is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are put to use. Depreciation on
sale/deduction from fixed assets is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction, discernment as the case may be.

viii. Investments
Long term investments are stated at cost, less provision for diminution in value of investments, which is considered to be
permanent. Current investments are stated at lower of cost or fair market value (determined on the specific identification basis).
Cost includes original cost of acquisition, including brokerage and stamp duty.

ix. Leases
Finance Lease:
Assets acquired under leases where the lessee has substantially acquired all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as
finance lease. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value or the present value of minimum
lease payment and the liability is created for the equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between liability and
interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.
Operating Leases:
Assets taken on lease under which the lessor effectively retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Lease payment made under operating lease is recognized as expenses in statement of profit and loss in
accordance with the lease agreement.

x. Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/(losses).
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date.
The gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the profit and loss account. Non-monetary assets and nonmonetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent
at the date of transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
Revenue, expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the
date of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.
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xi. Employee Benefits
Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiary
a. Provident Fund eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employees
and the company make monthly contributions to the provident fund authorities, equal to specified percentage of eligible covered
employees' salary. The company has no other obligation other than the monthly contribution.
b. Gratuity & Leave Encashment cost is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
reporting date. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the statement of other
comprehensive income in the reporting period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss
subsequently.
In the case of its Indian subsidiary India Comnet International Pvt. Ltd. the liabilities with regard to gratuity plan are determined
by actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date based upon which the company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to
LIC, who are the trustees/administrator of the plan.
Subsidiaries in US
In case of US Subsidiaries a saving and investment plan under section 401(k) of the internal revenue code of the United States of
America. This is a defined contribution plan. Contributions are charged to income in the period in which they accrue.
Subsidiary in Singapore
As per the local laws of Singapore, employers are required to contribute up to 13% of the basic salary of the employees. Contribution
is made to the fund approved by the government of Singapore.

xii. Earning per Share
Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xiii. Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax law s prevailing in the respective tax
jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized
in equity and not in statement of profit and loss.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except deferred tax liability arising from initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit/loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, except deferred tax assets arising from initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the
time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized in co -relation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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xiv. Minimum Alternate Tax
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a period/year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. MAT credit available
is recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period, i.e., the period f or which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit
as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under
the Income-Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT Credit
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at the each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specific period.

xv. Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & other Intangible Assets.
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. Recoverable amount of intangible under development that is not yet available for use is estimated at least
at each financial period/year end even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable of a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

xvi. Material Events
Material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance.

C. SHARE CAPITAL
i. Shares allotted in the period of five year immediately preceding March 31, 2017:
The Company has allotted 7,500 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each during the quarter ended September 30,
2014 pursuant to the ESOP scheme.

ii. Share Buy-back scheme
The no. of equity shares bought back and cancelled under share Buy-back scheme of the Company are as follows:
Amount in Nos.

Equity shares bought
back and cancelled
Nos.

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Previous Year ended
March 31, 2016

Previous Year ended
March 31, 2015

5,660,000

1,450,000

2,411,036

iii. Transaction cost
Under Ind AS cost incurred towards share Buy-back has been deducted from the other equity to the extent they are directly
attributable to equity transaction. The total transaction cost incurred during the period ₹1.02 Crores.

iv. Shares issued for consideration other than cash:
During the preceding period of five years there are no shares issued for consideration other than cash.

v. Shareholding in excess of 5% :
Shareholdings in excess of 5 percent of the aggregate share capital of the company as on March 31, 2017 is:

Name of share holder
Inﬁnite Technologies, LLC
IT Thinkers LLC

Number shares held

Percentage

21,372,136

64.67%

1,736,159

5.25%
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vi. Shares reserved for issue under options
Performance ESOP 2010
The Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the Company approved the Key Executives Performance Option Plan 2010 (“ESOP
2010”) for grant of 3,500,000 options convertible into 3,500,000 equity shares, at their meeting in May 2010 and in August 2010
respectively. Pursuant to this approval, the Company instituted the Performance ESOP 2010.
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company administers this Plan. The options have been granted to employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries at an exercise price that is not less than the fair market value. The particulars of the options granted
are as follows:
March 31, 2017

Particulars
Options Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the Period
Exercised during the Period
Cancelled during the Period
Lapsed during the Period
Surrender during the period
Surrender during the period
Surrender during the period
Options Outstanding at the end of the year
Closing Balances
Closing Balances
Closing Balances

No of Option
1,125,000
30,000
150,000
1,125,000
30,000
150,000

March 31, 2016

Exercise Price ₹
160.65
74.50
108.35
160.65
74.50
108.35

-

-

No of Option
1,125,000
30,000
150,000
50,000
50,000
-

1,125,000
30,000
150,000

Exercise Price ₹
160.65
74.50
108.35
154.20
154.20
-

160.65
74.50
108.35

During the period, all the ESOP options have been surrendered.

vii. Share allotted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares:
During the preceding five years, no shares have been allotted by way of Bonus Shares.

D. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for against which advance has not
been paid for ₹ 48.81 Million as on March 31, 2017 (as at March 31, 2016 ₹ 74.58 Million).
Contingent liability towards Bank Guarantees and LC's given to customers and other business related requirements is ₹ 169.07
Million as on March 31, 2017 (as at March 31, 2016 ₹ 159.30 Million).
Accumulated Losses Of Subsidiaries
The Investments in the subsidiary companies have been made considering strategic business expansion plans, & in view of the
intrinsic value and the business potential of the subsidiaries, these have been carried at cost. Some of the subsidiaries have
accumulated losses, but as these are considered temporary and the future operations in the near term will offset these losses, the
company has carried the investments at cost.

E. SEGMENT REPORTING
Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the management evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by geographical segments.
Accordingly, information has been presented along these geographical segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation
of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments. Operating income, net
income, assets and liabilities has not been provided by geographies as these are not realistically allocable and identifiable. Assets
and liabilities used in the Company's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are used
interchangeably between segments. Management believes that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating
to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the available data is onerous.
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₹ in Million

Geography

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

Domestic

1,157.86

1,359.13

Americas

21,090.24

18,585.81

133.02

23.52

Europe
APAC

1,281.70

1,114.56

Total

23,662.82

21,083.01

F. LEASES
The company is a lessee under various operating leases & finance leases. Leases expenses are as follows:

Operating Lease

Operating Lease Rent

₹ in Million

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

139.35

158.14

Finance Lease

Interest on Lease Rentals

₹ in Million

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

1.45

1.16

G. EARNING PER SHARE
The following is a computation of earnings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and
diluted earnings per equity share.
₹ in Million

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

1,208.84

1,210.33

Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding

38.35

39.26

Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding - Diluted

38.35

39.61

10

10

Net Profit /(Loss)

Nominal value of Equity shares
Basic Earnings per share

31.52

30.83

Diluted Earnings Per Share

31.52

30.56

H. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In the normal course of business, the company enters into transactions with affiliated companies. All the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the Indian accounting standard 24 (Ind AS) as follows:
Subsidiary Companies

Infinite Computer Solutions Inc., USA
Infinite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Infinite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Infinite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Canada Inc
Inﬁnite Carehub LLC

Consolidated Financial Statements|78

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

India Comnet International Pvt. Ltd.
Infinite Infocomplex Pvt Ltd.
Infinite Infoworld Ltd.
Infinite Infopark Ltd.
Infinite Techhub Limited
Infinite Techworld Limited
Infinite InfoCity Limited
Infinite Techcity Limited
Infinite Techsoft Limited
Infinite Skytech Limited
Infinite Thinksoft Limited
Inﬁnite Techmind Limited
Inﬁnite Techdata Limited
Whole-Time Managing Director of the Company

Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited
Upinder Zutshi

Non Whole-Time Director of the Company

Sanjay Govil

Key Managerial Personnel

Sanjeev Gulati – EVP & CFO
Rajesh Kumar Modi - Company Secretary

Enterprises in which key management personnel and
their relatives are able to exercise significant influence

N C Data Systems Private Limited
Instos Inc, USA

Included in the financial statements are the following amounts relating to transactions with related parties:
₹ in Million

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

178.77

299.94

Managerial Remuneration

48.42

46.71

Rent

10.69

7.45

0.53

0.50

541.26

155.65

Rent
Advances given/received Key Management Personnel

19.51

12.24

Sanjay Govil

18.35

33.17

Revenue
Enterprises over which Key Management
Personnel is able to exercise significant Influence
Instos Inc, USA
Consulting and Project Revenue
Expenses
Directors of the Company :

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
Rent
Enterprises over which Key Management
Personnel is able to exercise significant Influence
Instos Inc, USA
Purchased services
N.C Data Systems Pvt Ltd
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Enterprises over which Key Management
Personnel is able to exercise significant Influence
91.69

-

52.61

36.36

Sanjay Govil

-

34.82

Instos Inc, USA

-

89.55

Instos Inc, USA
Advances repaid by Key Management Personnel
Sanjay Govil
Balances outstanding at the end of the year Receivables
Key Management Personnel

I. BORROWINGS
The Company has a sanctioned Non–Fund based credit facilitates with Banks aggregating to ₹ 582 million as on March 31, 2017,
which are secured by equitable mortgage on Land and Building, and pari-passu charge over all movable fixed assets and entire
current assets.
Subsidiaries in US
Subsidiaries in US have jointly secured Line of Credit with a limit of $ 18 million from Bank, which are secured by lien on all Fixed and
Current Assets.

J. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION:
Opening goodwill as shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet was ₹ 683.46 million in respect of acquisition of 100% stock of India
Comnet International Private Limited by Infinite Computer Solutions Inc. which has decreased to ₹ 666.34 million as on March 31,
2017, decrease of ₹ 17.12 million over the previous year's balance is attributable to exchange difference.

K. DISCLOSURE OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES (SBNs)
During the year, the company has specified bank notes or other denomination notes as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R 308(E)
dated March 30, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from November 08,
2016 to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise (SBNs) and other notes as per notification is given as under.
₹ in Million

Particulars

SBNs

Other Denomination

Total

Closing cash in hand as on
November 08, 2016

1.79

0.10

1.89

Add: Permitted receipt

-

1.40

1.40

Less: Permitted Payments

-

0.63

0.63

1.79

-

1.79

-

0.87

0.87

Less: Amount deposited in Bank
Closing cash in hand as on
December 30, 2016

L. RECLASSIFICATION
Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s groupings and
classifications.
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF,
INFINITE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited ('the Company'),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers Internal Financial Control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its Financial
Performance including other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.
b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;
c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;
e. on the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;
f.

with respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

g. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:


the Company has no pending litigations having any significant impact on its financial position requiring any disclosure in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements ;



no provision was required, under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts ;



there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company; and



the Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as to holdings as well as
dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016 refer Note Q attached,
and these are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of the Company on the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.
We report as follows:
i.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
b. The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phased
manner at reasonable intervals. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii. The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories.
Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
iii. The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited partnerships, or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Accordingly, para 3(iii) of the order is not applicable.
iv. The Company has not attracted the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.
vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services
rendered by the Company.
vii. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of employees' state insurance and duty of excise.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income
tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March
31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Value added tax, Service tax, duty of
Customs duty of Excise duty which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
viii. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.
ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.
x. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
xi. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act wherever applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
Amit Ray & Co.
For Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on the Internal Control over
Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable, financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls System over
Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an
understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
Internal Financial Controls System over Financial Reporting

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control
over Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls System over Financial Reporting and such
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the Internal Control over
Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
Amit Ray & Co.
For Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Notes

1

As at March 31, 2017

649.10

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

704.12

566.41

Capital work-in-progress

2

0.04

0.83

11.01

Other Intangible assets

3

20.43

40.15

67.83

- Investments

4

1,370.52

1,338.02

983.42

Other Non-Current Assets

5

Financial Assets

Total Non-current assets - A

472.17

457.62

451.04

2,512.26

2,540.74

2,079.71

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables

6

1,198.19

1,233.11

1,050.36

- Cash and cash equivalents

7

1,480.41

1,844.96

1,573.44

- Bank Balances other than above

8

1.41

1.42

1.60

- Loans and Advances

9

49.79

45.94

51.27

- Other Current Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)

10

643.75

899.34

877.75

11

1,277.08

999.83

821.81

Other Current Assets

12

349.69

438.04

530.39

Total Current Assets - B

5,000.32

5,462.64

4,906.62

Total Assets - A+B

7,512.58

8,003.38

6,986.33

330.46

387.06

401.56

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital

13

Other Equity

14

Total Equity - C

5,198.55

5,722.14

5,046.53

5,529.01

6,109.20

5,448.09

2.73

3.56

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings

15

2.68

Provisions

16

52.89

40.43

35.67

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

17

Other Non-Current Liabilities

65.72
-

73.38
-

75.05
-

Total Non-Current Liabilities - D

121.29

116.54

114.28
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BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

Notes

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings

-

-

-

- Trade payables

18

123.72

130.01

137.77

- Other ﬁnancial liabilities

19

2.95

3.63

3.25

Other current liabilities

20

205.86

276.47

224.03

Provisions

21

183.70

346.25

197.83

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

22

Total Current Liabilities - E
Total Equity and Liabilities - C+D+E
Notes on Accounts

1,346.05

1,021.28

861.08

1,862.28

1,777.64

1,423.96

7,512.58

8,003.38

6,986.33

28

As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 23, 2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Notes

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Revenue from operations

23

3,833.11

4,285.44

Other income

24

95.01

140.24

3,928.12

4,425.68

2,039.13

2,378.38

Particulars
Income

Total Income
Expenses
Manpower Expenses

25

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

26

Other expenses

27

1.46

1.17

144.11

157.62

563.06

747.42

Total expenses

2,747.76

3,284.59

Proﬁt/(loss) before exceptional items and tax

1,180.36

1,141.09

-

-

1,180.36

1,141.09

324.76
-

242.85

Exceptional items
Proﬁt/(loss) before tax
Tax Expenses
Current tax
Previous year taxes

(8.51)

2.17
(0.56)

Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement
Total Tax Expenses

(54.00)

(53.40)

262.25

191.06

Net Proﬁt for the period/year

918.11

950.03

12.65
(4.38)

(3.17)

Deferred tax

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt plan actuarial gains/(losses)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the period

8.27

1.10
(2.07)

926.38

947.96

Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic

23.94

24.20

(2) Diluted

23.94

23.98

Notes on Accounts

28

As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

1,180.36

1,141.07

144.11
13.40
-

157.62
(0.11)
(75.80)

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Income before tax and extraordinary items
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
(Proﬁt)/Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets
(Proﬁt)/Loss on Sale of Investments (net)
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Interest on deposits
Interest Paid
Dividend Income from Investments
Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt plan actuarial gains/ (losses)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of
foreign currency cash and cash equivalents
Operating Proﬁt before working capital changes
Adjusted for:
Accounts Receivable
Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
Current Liabilities and Provisions
Cash Generated from Operations
Income Tax paid
Income Tax Refund
Net Cash from Operating Activities [A]

7.06
(107.86)
1.46
12.65

1.17
(3.17)

7.31

1.04

1,258.49

1,221.82

27.85
120.93
253.89
(227.63)
1,433.53
(277.24)
1,156.29

(182.74)
62.45
(14.33)
198.25
1,285.45
(262.84)
1,022.61

(84.57)
2.58
(25.00)
-

(257.46)
0.11
(285.60)
-

105.07
(1.46)
(3.38)

81.56
(1.17)
(462.56)

(1,510.10)
(0.05)
(1,510.15)

(286.84)
(0.83)
(287.67)

(7.31)

(1.04)

(357.24)
1,846.37
1,481.82

272.38
1,575.04
1,846.38

B) Cash ﬂow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Proceeds on Sale of Fixed Assets
(Acquisition)/Sale in Subsidiaries Investment
Purchase of Current Investments
Sale of Investments
Dividend Income
Interest on Deposits
Interest Paid
Net Cash from/(used In) Investing Activities [B]
C) Cash ﬂow from Financing Activities:
Payment for Share Buy-back
Issue of Share under ESOP options
Dividend Payment
Dividend Distribution Tax
Proceeds from borrowing/(Repayment)
Net Cash from/(used In) Financing Activities [C]
Effect of exchange differences on translation of
foreign currency cash and cash equivalents
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents ([A]+[B]+[C])
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2016

Note:
Cash and cash equivalents includes the following:
Bank account kept for dividend payment
Bank account kept for share application money refund
Escrow Bank account open for Buy-back

0.83
0.58

0.84
0.58

1.41

1.42

As per our report of even date

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/C V Savit Kumar Rao
For Amit Ray & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No: 70009)
Firm ICAI Reg. No: 000483-C

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
NOTE 1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment - Net Carrying amount
(*see the Note 1-A for further detail)

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

649.10
649.10

704.12
704.12

566.41
566.41

0.04
0.04

0.83
0.83

11.01
11.01

20.43
20.43

40.15
40.15

67.83
67.83

1,370.52
1,370.52

1,338.02
1,338.02

983.42
983.42

472.17
472.17

457.62
457.62

451.04
451.04

39.53
1,158.66
7.06
1,205.25
7.06
1,198.19

48.59
1,184.52
1,233.11
1,233.11

82.15
968.21
15.79
1,066.15
15.79
1,050.36

0.49

0.29

0.50

514.14
133.70
2.62
823.87
5.59
1,480.41

181.84
367.68
3.05
1,287.01
5.09
1,844.96

246.21
318.87
4.68
985.80
17.38
1,573.44

NOTE 8 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE
Balance in Bank account kept for Dividend Payment
0.83
Balance in Bank account kept for Share Application money refund 0.58
1.41

0.84
0.58
1.42

0.87
0.73
1.60

49.79
49.79

45.94
45.94

51.27
51.27

24.71
477.99
121.83
19.22
643.75

21.92
802.02
51.69
23.71
899.34

27.68
798.61
40.79
10.67
877.75

NOTE 2 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Capital work in Progress - Net Carrying amount

NOTE 3 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other Intangible assets - Net Carrying amount
(*see the Note 1-A for further detail)
NOTE 4 FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENT
Investment in Subsidiary Company

NOTE 5 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Advances

NOTE 6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured Considered Good
- More than 6 months
- Others
Unsecured Considered Doubtful
Provision for Bad and doubtful debts

NOTE 7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in Hand
Balances with Noted Banks in Indian Rupees
In Current Accounts
In EEFC Account
Balances with Bank accounts - outside India
Bank Deposits - Maturity within 12 months
Bank Deposits held against Guarantees

NOTE 9 LOANS & ADVANCES
Security Deposits - Unsecured considered good
NOTE 10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIALS ASSETS
Interest accrued but not due
Unbilled receivables
Other receivables
Advances recoverable from employees

Standalone Financial Statements|90

Inﬁnite Computer Solutions (India) Limited

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
NOTE 11 CURRENT TAX - NET
Advance income tax (net)

NOTE 12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses
Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement
Share application money- pending allotment

NOTE 13 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
50,000,000 Equity shares @ ₹ 10 each.

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

1,277.08
1,277.08

999.83
999.83

821.81
821.81

64.65
6.32
278.72
349.69

48.71
157.11
224.72
7.50
438.04

142.13
140.43
171.33
76.50
530.39

500.00
500.00

500.00
500.00

500.00
500.00

330.46
330.46

387.06
387.06

401.56
401.56

38.71
5.66
33.05

40.16
1.45
38.71

40.44
0.01
0.29
40.16

164.22
164.22
-

436.56
272.34
164.22

468.42
0.48
32.34
436.56

322.38
322.38

322.38
322.38

322.38
322.38

53.66
56.60
110.26

39.16
14.50
53.66

36.22
2.94
39.16

(2.08)
8.27
6.19

(2.08)
(2.08)

-

5,183.96
918.11
56.60
1,285.75
4,759.72
5,198.55

4,248.43
950.03
14.50
5,183.96
5,722.14

3,300.18
1,035.51
2.94
84.32
4,248.43
5,046.53

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
33,046,459 equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid.
(Previews year 38,706,459 equity shares)

Other Information
Number of Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each
Opening Balance
Add: issue of Shares under ESOP
Less: Shares Buy-back

NOTE 14 OTHER EQUITY
i. Security Premium
Opening Balance
Add: Share Premium received on issue of ESOP Shares

Less: Utilization for Share Buy-back
ii.

General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt and Loss Account

iii. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt & Loss Account
iv. Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance
Add: Remeasurement of deﬁned beneﬁt Liabilities
v.

Proﬁt & Loss Account
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer from Proﬁt & Loss Account
Less: Amount transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve a/c
Less: Amount used for Buy-back of Shares/other adjustment

Total of other Equity
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
NOTE 15 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Vehicle loans from Kotak Mahindra Bank
NOTE 16 PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneﬁts
NOTE 17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Adjustments for the current year
Net Deferred Tax Liability
NOTE 18 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payable - Others
Trade Payable - Subsidiary Companies
Trade Payable - Employees
NOTE 19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Vehicle loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank
Unpaid dividends
Share Application money refundable
NOTE 20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers
Taxes Payable - Sales Tax, Service Tax and WHT
Other liabilities
Other Payable to Employees
Statutory dues payable for employees
NOTE 21 PROVISIONS
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Others provisions
NOTE 22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Provision for taxes

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 01, 2015

2.68
2.68

2.73
2.73

3.56
3.56

52.89
52.89

40.43
40.43

35.67
35.67

73.38
(7.66)
65.72

75.05
(1.67)
73.38

88.72
(13.67)
75.05

117.94
5.78
123.72

124.48
5.53
130.01

133.08
4.69
137.77

1.54
0.83
0.58
2.95

2.21
0.84
0.58
3.63

1.65
0.87
0.73
3.25

16.78
7.51
0.03
173.38
8.16
205.86

71.38
(11.78)
0.03
209.63
7.21
276.47

51.94
(33.41)
0.03
195.94
9.53
224.03

8.56
175.14
183.70

4.65
341.60
346.25

4.40
193.43
197.83

1,346.05
1,346.05

1,021.28
1,021.28

861.08
861.08
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2017
₹ in Millions

Particulars
NOTE 23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services
Domestic Sales
Export Sales
NOTE 24 OTHER INCOME
Interest on Bank Deposits
Dividend Income
Proﬁt/(Loss) on Sale of Assets
Proﬁt/(Loss) on Sale of Investment
Rental Income
Miscellaneous Income
Exchange (Loss)/Gain - Net
NOTE 25 MANPOWER EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Contractual Services
NOTE 26 FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Loans
NOTE 27 OTHER EXPENSES
Rent & Hire Charges
Repairs & Maintenance
Building
Plant & Machinery
Vehicles
Others
Security Charges
Insurance
Communication Expenses
Recruitment Expenses
Legal & Professional Charges
Software Expenses
Project Expenses
Business Promotion
Traveling & Conveyance
Printing & Stationery
Electricity, Water and Fuel
Seminar, Training, Membership and Subscriptions
Provision for Bad Debts
Bad Debts
Auditors' Remuneration
Rates & Taxes
Directors Sitting Fee
Old Balance written off a/c
Exchange Loss/(Gain) - Net
Bank Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses
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Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

1,157.86
2,675.25
3,833.11

1,359.12
2,926.32
4,285.44

107.86
(13.40)
0.30
0.25
95.01

75.80
0.11
1.78
62.55
140.24

1,550.30
97.78
66.77
324.28
2,039.13

1,543.85
80.46
75.83
678.24
2,378.38

1.46
1.46

1.17
1.17

53.10

68.22

6.10
13.84
0.44
26.45
10.12
8.81
30.86
12.96
82.02
55.13
49.11
5.33
101.07
7.50
35.86
9.71
7.06
2.30
2.57
6.06
1.44
0.19
31.55
2.99
0.49
563.06

2.59
12.52
0.56
29.93
12.51
9.28
27.13
11.91
123.99
66.47
183.20
5.01
84.61
6.93
48.77
5.19
33.64
2.54
4.13
1.40
0.26
3.20
3.43
747.42

160.02

85.36

1.66

299.21
1,709.69

1.66

279.03

1,719.25

300.87

75.80

300.87

1,418.38

39.05

40.33

159.13

95.86

57.53

107.49

118.33

-

75.80

10.57

6.01
-

38.32

2.69

7.15

0.11

402.65

10.95

118.98

As at
March 31,
2017

-

Adjustments
/Sold during
theYear

965.41

259.06

259.06

706.35

39.40

24.65

101.13

93.20

30.00

61.13

80.85

244.02

31.97

-

Up to
April 1,
2016

144.11

21.38

21.38

122.73

1.02

3.78

19.14

15.98

5.49

7.71

10.74

54.24

4.63

-

Provided
during the
Year

59.80

-

-

59.80

3.94

4.82
-

36.61

0.45

2.92

0.11

10.95

-

-

Adjustments
/Sold during
theYear

DEPRECIATION

The execution of the absolute sale deed for the land measuring 18,640 sq. meters is pending with the KIADB.

Notes:

GRAND TOTAL (A+B)

Software
Total of Intangible Assets (B)

299.21

83.70

1,410.48

Electrical Installations
Total of Tangible Assets (A)

Intangible Assets

0.14

40.33
49.48

Plant & Machinery

5.12
-

1.58

132.60

IT & Networking Equipments

0.45

114.19
13.51

15.36

103.08

Ofﬁce Equipment

Furniture & Fixtures
46.71

4.28
27.93

274.75
385.67

Computers

Vehicles
Leasehold Improvements

15.33

Additions
during the
Year

103.65

As at
April 1,
2016

GROSS BLOCK AT COST

Land / Leasehold Land
Buildings

Tangible Assets

Particulars

Note : 1-A

SCHEDULE OF FIXED ASSETS AS ON MARCH 31, 2017

1,049.72

280.44

280.44

769.28

36.48

28.43

115.45

72.57

35.04

65.92

91.48

287.31

36.60

As at
March 31,
2017

669.53

20.43

20.43

649.10

2.57

11.90

43.68

23.29

22.49

41.57

26.85

115.34

242.43

118.98

As at
March 31,
2017

744.26

40.15

40.15

704.12

10.08

15.68

58.89

39.40

16.71

53.05

22.23

141.65

242.77

103.65

As at
March 31,
2016

NET BLOCK

₹ in Million

TM
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017
A. Equity Share Capital
₹ in Millions

Opening Balance

Changes in equity share
capital during the Year

Closing Balance

For FY 2016-2017

387.06

(56.60)

330.46

For FY 2015-2016

401.56

(14.50)

387.06

Particulars

B. Other Equity
₹ in Millions

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

For FY 2016-2017
Balance as at April 01, 2016

Securities
Premium

General
reserve

164.22

322.38

Capital
redemption
reserve

53.66

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Transfer to retained earnings
Utilization for Share Buy-back

56.60
(164.22)

Utilization for Share Buy-back expenses
Deferred tax adjustment on
Buy-back expenses
Balance at March 31, 2017
For FY 2015-2016
Balance as at April 01, 2015
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Utilization for Share Buy-back
Balance at March 31, 2016

95|Standalone Financial Statements

Retained
Earnings

Other items
of Other
Comprehensive
Income (specify
nature)

Total
equity

5,183.96

(2.08)

5,722.14

918.11

8.27

926.38

(56.60)

-

(1,279.08)

(1,443.30)

(10.20)

(10.20)

3.53

3.53

-

322.38

110.26

4,759.72

6.19

5,198.55

436.56

322.38

39.16

4,248.43

-

5,046.53

-

-

-

950.03

(2.08)

947.95

(272.34)

-

14.50

(14.50)

-

(272.34)

164.22

322.38

53.66

5,183.96

(2.08)

5,722.14

TM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 28

A. BACKGROUND
Infinite Computer Solutions (India) Limited ('the Company'), a Public Limited Company, is a global service provider of Application
Management Outsourcing, Remote Infrastructure Management Services, R&D and Intellectual Property Leveraged Solutions and
related IT Services.
The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of the activities undertaken by the Company during the year ended
March 31, 2017.

B. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i. Basis of preparation
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act , 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for the following material
items which have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:




Derivative financial instruments,
Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits.

Statement of Compliance
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) with effect from April 1, 2016. Previous period's
and year's numbers have been restated to Ind AS.
The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disclosures in the notes thereto and
accounting policies and principles. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, is set out in Note P.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting as notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the end of year. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

iii. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade
discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Company. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:
Income from software services
Revenue from time and material engagements is recognized on time proportion basis as and when the services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the contracts with customers. In case of fixed price contracts, revenue is recognized based on the
milestones achieved as specified in the contracts, on proportionate completion basis. Unbilled revenue represents revenue recognized
in relation to work done until the Balance Sheet date for which billing has not taken place. Unearned revenue represents the billing in
respect of contracts for which the revenue is not recognized. The Company collects service tax and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of
the Government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.
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Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the carrying amount and the effective interest rate.
Interest income is included under the head 'Other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. Dividend income
is included under the head 'Other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv. a. Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property,
plant and equipment that are not ready to be put to use. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment
is added to its book value only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is disposed.

b. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use. Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is disposed.
Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible asset
when the Company can demonstrate:







Technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
Its intention to complete the asset;
Its ability to use or sell the asset;
How the asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Such development expenditure, until capitalization, is reflected as intangible assets under development. Following the initial recognition,
internally generated intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortization of internally generated intangible asset begins when the development is complete and the asset is available for use.

v. Depreciation
Depreciation on all fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets as specified in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on addition to fixed assets is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are put to use. Depreciation on
sale/deduction from fixed assets is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction, discernment as the case may be.

vi. Investments
Long term investments are stated at cost, less provision for diminution in value of investments, which is considered to be
permanent. Current investments are stated at lower of cost or fair market value (determined on the specific identification basis).
Cost includes original cost of acquisition, including brokerage and stamp duty.
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vii. Leases
Finance Lease:
Assets acquired under leases where the lessee has substantially acquired all the risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as
finance lease. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value or the present value of minimum
lease payment and the liability is created for the equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between liability and
interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.
Operating Leases:
Assets taken on lease under which the lessor effectively retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Lease payment made under operating lease is recognized as expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with the lease agreement.

viii.Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/(losses).
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The
gains or losses resulting from such translations are included in the Profit and Loss Account. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date
of transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)
Revenue, expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect on the
date of the transaction. Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

ix. Employee Benefits
Company's contribution to Provident Fund is charged to the Profit & Loss Account.
Gratuity & Leave Encashment cost is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the
reporting date. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the statement of other
comprehensive income in the reporting period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss subsequently.
The Company has adopted the following assumption for actuarial valuation of defined benefit and contribution plan:
Disclosure as per IND AS-19 – Employee Benefits

Gratuity

Leaves

Interest Rate

7.31%

7.31%

Discount Factor

7.31%

7.31%

Estimated rate of return on plan Assets

0.00%

0.00%

Salary increase

6.00%

6.00%

Attrition rate
Retirement Age

5.00%

5.00%

58

58

Actuarial gain/loss is recognized immediately.
The estimate of salary increase take into account inflation, promotions etc.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected
return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the
discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income.
Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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x. Earning per Share
Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the quarter attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xi. Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions
where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except deferred tax liability arising from initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit/loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, except deferred tax assets arising from initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/loss at the
time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized in co-relation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

xii. Minimum Alternate Tax
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. MAT credit available is
recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit
as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under
the Income-Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as “MAT credit
entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at the each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specific period.

xiii. Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & other Intangible Assets.
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. Recoverable amount of intangible under development that is not yet available for use is estimated at least
at each financial year end even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable of a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

xiv. Transfer Pricing Regulation
The Company has undertaken necessary steps to comply with transfer pricing regulations. The management is of the opinion that
the international transactions are at arm's length and hence the aforesaid regulation will not have any impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of the provision for taxation.

xv. Material Events
Material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance.
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C. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial
assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. While, loans and borrowings and payable are
recognised net of directly attributable transactions costs.
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following categories: nonderivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI), equity instruments at FVTOCI and fair value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL), non-derivative financial liabilities at
amortised cost or FVTPL and derivative financial instruments (under the category of financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL.
The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held. Management
determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

i. Non-derivative financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:


The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and



The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented
as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.
Amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances
and eligible current and non-current assets.
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented
as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. Amortised cost are represented by trade receivables,
security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current and non-current assets.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any
time without prior notice or penalty on the principal.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with
banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand, book overdraft and are considered part of the Company's
cash management system.
The Company has not dealt with any financial assets in the form of Debt or Equity Instruments requiring fair value measurement as
at each reporting period.

ii. Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL represented by contingent consideration are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

D. SHARE CAPITAL
i. Shares allotted in the period of five year immediately preceding March 31, 2017:
The Company has allotted 7,500 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each during the quarter ended September 30,
2014 pursuant to the ESOP scheme.
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ii. Share Buy-back scheme
The no. of equity shares bought back and cancelled under share Buy-back schemes of the Company are as follows:
Equity shares bought
back and cancelled

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Previous Year ended
March 31, 2016

Previous Year ended
March 31, 2015

5,660,000

1,450,000

2,411,036

Nos.

iii. Transaction cost
Under Ind AS cost incurred in regard to share Buy-back has been deducted from the other equity to the extent they are directly
attributable to equity transaction. The total transaction cost incurred during the period ₹ 1.02 Crores.

iv. Shares issued for consideration other than Cash:
During the preceding period of five years there are no shares issued for consideration other than cash.

v. Shareholding in excess of 5% :
Shareholdings in excess of 5 percent of the aggregate share capital of the company as on March 31, 2017 is:
Name of share holder
Inﬁnite Technologies, LLC
IT Thinkers LLC

Number shares held

Percentage

21,372,136

64.67%

1,736,159

5.25%

vi. Shares reserved for issue under options
Performance ESOP 2010
The Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the Company approved the Key Executives Performance Option Plan 2010 (“ESOP
2010”) for grant of 3,500,000 options convertible into 3,500,000 equity shares, at their meeting in May 2010 and in August 2010
respectively. Pursuant to this approval, the Company instituted the Performance ESOP 2010.
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company administers this Plan. The options have been granted to employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries at an exercise price that is not less than the fair market value. The particulars of the options
granted are as follows:
March 31, 2017

Particulars
Options Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Cancelled during the year
Lapsed during the period
Surrender during the year
Surrender during the year
Surrender during the year
Options outstanding at the end of the year
Closing balances
Closing balances
Closing balances

No of Option
1,125,000
30,000
150,000
1,125,000
30,000
150,000

March 31, 2016

Exercise Price ₹
160.65
74.50
108.35
160.65
74.50
108.35

-

-

No of Option
1,125,000
30,000
150,000
50,000
50,000
-

Exercise Price ₹
160.65
74.50
108.35
154.20
154.20
-

1,125,000
30,000
150,000

During the period, all the ESOP options have been surrendered and hence with this, ESOP 2010 is no more effective.

vii. Share allotted as fully paid up by way of Bonus Shares:
During the preceding five years, no shares have been allotted by way of Bonus Shares.
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E. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for against which advance has not
been paid for ₹ 48.81 Million as on March 31, 2017 (as at March 31,2016 ₹ 74.58 Million).
Contingent liability towards Bank Guarantees and LC's given to customers and other business related requirements is ₹ 169.07
Million as on March 31, 2017 (as at March 31, 2016 ₹ 159.30 Million).
Accumulated Losses Of Subsidiaries
The Investments in the subsidiary companies have been made considering strategic business expansion plans, in view of the
intrinsic value and the business potential of the subsidiaries, these have been carried at cost. Some of the subsidiaries have
accumulated losses, but as these are considered temporary and the future operations in the near term will offset these losses, the
company has carried the investments at cost.

F. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
Managerial Remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 paid to the Managing and Whole time Directors of the
Company are as follows:
₹ in Million

Particulars
Salary
Monetary value of perquisites
Total

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

40.60

37.93

0.04

0.04

40.64

37.97

G SEGMENT REPORTING
Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the management evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by geographical segments.
Accordingly, information has been presented along these geographical segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation
of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments. Operating income, net
income, assets and liabilities has not been provided by geographies as these are not realistically allocable and identifiable. Assets
and Liabilities used in the Company's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are used
interchangeably between segments. Management believes that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating
to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the available data is onerous.
₹ in Million

Revenue
Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

Domestic

1,157.86

1,359.13

Americas
Europe

2,483.21

2,867.89

Location

95.74

23.52

APAC

96.29

34.91

Total

3,833.10

4,285.45

H. LEASES
The company is a lessee under various operating leases. Rental expense for operating leases for the Year ended March 31, 2017
and year ended March 31, 2016 was ₹ 53.10 Million and ₹ 68.22 Million respectively. Expected future minimum commitments for
non-cancellable leases are as follows:
₹ in Million

Minimum future commitments

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

4.00

4.71

Due in next one to Five year

-

-

Due in more than five year

-

-

4.00

4.71

Due in next one year

Total
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I. EARNING PER SHARE
The following is a computation of earnings per share and a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and
diluted earnings per equity share.
₹ in Million

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

918.11

950.03

Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding

38.35

39.26

Weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding - Diluted

38.35

39.61

Net Profit /(Loss)

Nominal value of Equity shares

10

10

Basic Earnings per share

23.94

24.20

Diluted Earnings Per Share

23.94

23.98

J. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
In the normal course of business, the company enters into transactions with affiliated companies. All the transactions with related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS) as follows:
Subsidiary Companies

Infinite Computer Solutions Inc., USA
Infinite Computer Solutions Ltd, U.K
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Infinite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
Inﬁnite Computer Solutions Canada Inc
Inﬁnite Carehub LLC
Infinite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
India Comnet International Pvt. Ltd.
Infinite Infocomplex Pvt Ltd.
Infinite Infoworld Ltd.
Infinite Infopark Ltd.
Infinite Techhub Limited
Infinite Techworld Limited
Infinite InfoCity Limited
Infinite Techcity Limited
Infinite Techsoft Limited
Infinite Skytech Limited
Infinite Thinksoft Limited
Inﬁnite Techmind Limited
Inﬁnite Techdata Limited

Whole-Time Managing Director of the Company

Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited
Upinder Zutshi

Non Whole-Time Director of the Company

Sanjay Govil

Key Managerial Personnel

Sanjeev Gulati – EVP & CFO
Rajesh Kumar Modi - Company Secretary

Enterprises in which key management personnel and
their relatives are able to exercise significant influence

N C Data Systems Private Limited
Instos Inc, USA

103|Standalone Financial Statements

TM

Included in the financial statements are the following amounts relating to transactions with related parties:
₹ in Million

Particulars
1. Revenue
Subsidiary Companies
Sale
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc; USA
Infinite Convergence Solutions, Inc;
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Instos Inc, USA

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

1672.73
748.64
23.77
-

1613.67
1057.56
0.44
26.36
89.97

8.28

6.05

19.51

12.24

8.27

6.45

0.53

0.50

40.64

37.97

616.85
7.41
252.87
-

563.89
2.10
358.19
0.43
89.55

-

-

0.62
0.61

0.61
0.60

-

7.50

229.53
26.72
8.51
26.48
5.10
434.57
49.90
43.00
42.80
30.70

229.53
26.72
8.51
26.48
5.10
434.57
49.90
43.00
42.80
30.70

2. Expenses
Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc; USA
Contractual Services

Companies under same management
N C Data Systems Private Limited
Rent
Non Whole Time Director of the Company
Sanjay Govil
Rent
Key Managerial Persons
Sanjeev Gulati & his relatives
Rent
Directors of the Company
Managerial Remuneration
3. Balance outstanding as at the year end
Receivables
Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc; USA
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Infinite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Instos Inc., USA
Payables
Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc, USA
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Techcity Limited
Infinite Thinksoft Limited
Share Application Money pending Allotment
Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Tech Ventures Limited
Investments
In Subsidiary Companies
Infinite Computer Solutions Inc., USA
Infinite Computer Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore
Infinite Computer Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
Infinite Computer Solutions Limited, U.K
Infinite Computer Solutions Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia
Infinite Convergence Solutions, Inc.
Infinite Techhub Limited
Infinite Techworld Limited
Infinite Infocity Limited
Infinite Infocomplex Pvt. Limited
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₹ in Million

Particulars
Infinite Infocomplex Pvt. Limited
Infinite Infoworld Limited
Infinite Infopark Limited
Infinite Techcity Limited
Infinite Techsoft Limited
Infinite Skytech Limited
Infinite Thinksoft Limited
Inﬁnite Techmind Limited
Inﬁnite Techdata Limited
Inﬁnite Tech Ventures Limited

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

30.70
43.80
49.90
49.50
49.00
175.50
49.50

30.70
43.80
49.90
49.50
49.00
150.50
49.50

0.50

0.50

0.50

0.50

55.00

47.50

K. INCOME TAXES
In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 12 on accounting for taxes on income, the deferred tax charge of ₹ 8.52
Million as on March 31, 2017 (previous year ₹ 1.67 Million) for the current period has been recognized in the Profit & Loss
account. The tax effect of significant timing differences as of March 31, 2017 that reverse in one or more subsequent years gave
rise to the following net deferred tax assets/(liability) as at March 31, 2017.
Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Retirement Benefits

10.19

4.53

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation

75.91

77.90

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

(65.72)

(73.37)

L. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.I.F. BASIS
₹ in Million

Capital Goods
Others

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

3.83
Nil

0.45
Nil

M. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
₹ in Million

FOB Value of Exports*

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

2,616.89

2,926.32

* Does not include receipts in convertible foreign exchange aggregating to ₹ 68.40 Million for year ended March 31, 2017
(Previous Year ended March 31, 2016 ₹ 64.44 Million) in respect of services provided in India.

N. CREDIT FACILITIES WITH BANKS
The Company has a sanctioned Non–Fund based credit facilitates with Banks aggregating to ₹ 582 million as on March 31, 2017,
which are secured by equitable mortgage on Land and Building, and pari-passu charge over all movable fixed assets and entire
current assets.
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O. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON CASH BASIS)
₹ in Million

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended March 31, 2016

Travelling

58.32

60.67

8.19

9.79

Contractual Services
Legal & Professional Charges

10.53

0.18

Software Licenses

12.86

3.36

-

9.60

0.73

-

Investment
Others

P. FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IND-AS
The Company has prepared the condensed financial statements in accordance with Ind-AS. For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements under previous GAAP. In preparing these financial statements,
the Company's opening Balance Sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2015, the Company's date of transition to Ind-AS. This note
explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the Balance
Sheet as at April 01, 2015 and the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.
Re-measurements of defined benefit Liabilities
Under Indian GAAP, the actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit obligations and plan assets is recognized as employee benefit expenses
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, such actuarial gain/loss is recognized under other comprehensive income and
classified as equity. The impact arising on this change is summarized as follows:
Deﬁned beneﬁt liabilities
Amount in ₹

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended March
March 31, 2016

Indian GAAP

85,121,909

83,631,185

Effect of transition to Ind AS

12,657,040

(31,75,045)

-

-

97,778,949

80,456,140

Reclassiﬁcation adjustments
Ind AS

Q. DISCLOSURE OF SPECIFIED BANK NOTES (SBNs)
During the year, the company has specific bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R.308(E)
dated March 30, 2017 on the details of specified bank notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from November 08, 2016
to December 30, 2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per notification is given as under
Amount in ₹

Particulars
Closing cash in hand as on November 08, 2016

S B Ns
1,792,000

Other Denomination
103,270

Total
1,895,270

Add: Permitted receipt

-

1,399,000

1,399,000

Less: Permitted payments

-

625,725

625,725

1,792,000

-

1,792,000

-

876,545

876,545

Less: Amount deposited in Bank
Closing balance in hand as on December 30, 2016
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R. RECLASSIFICATION
Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's groupings and
classifications.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/Upinder Zutshi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN: 01734121)

Sd/Ravindra Rama Rao Turaga
Director
(DIN: 01687662)

Sd/Sanjeev Gulati
EVP & CFO

Sd/Rajesh Kumar Modi
Company Secretary
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Date : May 23, 2017

